
   

 



 
On The Cover 

Water Mill, Mecox Bay, and Flying Point 

 
Two historic mills are the most important landmarks in the hamlet of Water Mill (center background just below Mill Pond), which is lo-

cated about one-third of the way east of the beginning of the South Fork of Long Island. Built to designs common in the 17th and 18th 

centuries, and sheathed in cedar shingles, the mills stand within sight of one another. The one for which the hamlet is named is powered by 

the flow of water from Mill Pond (background just below the farm fields) through Mill Creek to Mecox Bay (right and left foreground). 

Renovated to its current form in 1726, it dates to 1640 when Edward Howell, a miller from Lynn, Massachusetts, was granted 40 acres at 

the mouth of Mill Pond to build a new gristmill in exchange for his services in grinding grain for residents of the nearby settlement of 

Southampton. The other, built later, is a traditional windmill which uses canvas sails on wooden frames to harness the wind. Mecox Bay 

itself has often been “let” open to the ocean (bottom foreground), both to release excess water, and to adjust the salinity of the bay to en-

courage the growth of shellfish, harvested by local residents for centuries. Today, the Bay and the adjacent beach at Flying Point (right bot-

tom foreground) provide an extraordinary setting for swimmers, kayakers, and rowers to pursue their pastimes. 

 
After the Long Island Rail Road was extended to Water Mill during the 1870’s, it became the summer home of wealthy New Yorkers who 

built great houses around Mill Pond and Mecox Bay. This remains the case to this day, where as recently as 2006, Water Mill’s Zip code 

was listed as the 6th most expensive Zip code in the United States based on median house prices, according to Forbes magazine. SCNB 

maintains a full-service office within walking distance of the center of Water Mill. 
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Corporate Profile 

 

Suffolk Bancorp does commercial banking through its wholly owned subsidiary, Suffolk County National Bank. Organized in 1890, 

“SCNB” is a full-service, nationally chartered commercial bank. Most of SCNB’s revenue comes from net interest income, and the remain-

der from charges for a variety of services. SCNB has built a good reputation for personal, attentive service, resulting in a loyal and growing 

clientele. SCNB operates 29 full-service offices throughout Suffolk County, New York. 

 

The staff at SCNB works hard to develop and maintain ties to the communities it serves. SCNB’s business includes loans to small and me-

dium-sized commercial enterprises, to professionals, and to individual consumers. Suffolk Bancorp’s main strategic focus is on small busi-

nessmen and professionals and those retail customers who need a range of financial services tailored to their individual needs, and who 

expect the kind of personal service that is possible only through the establishment of relationships that develop over time. In recent years 

commercial loans of all types have increased as a percentage of the loan portfolio and have made substantial contributions to SCNB’s prof-

itability. SCNB’s primary market is Long Island, New York. Long Island is home to approximately 2.8 million people outside of the limits 

of New York City and is primarily suburban in nature. Nassau County and the western end of Suffolk County are a center for commerce 

and are highly developed, supporting a diversified economy. The economy on eastern Long Island is based on services that support tour-

ism, a large number of second homes, and agriculture. Together, they generate family incomes greater than the national average, providing 

Suffolk Bancorp with a steady and growing demand for loans and other services, and a reliable, reasonably priced supply of deposits. 

(dollars in thousands, except ratios, share, and per-share information)
December 31, 2007 2006

EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR Net income 22,128$        22,628$        
Net interest income 63,964          65,710          

Net income-per-share 2.24              2.20              
Cash dividends-per-share 0.88              0.88              

BALANCES AT YEAR END Assets 1,470,581$   1,392,649$   
Net loans 951,128        883,896        

Investment securities 410,407        418,343        
Deposits 1,143,375     1,139,075     

Equity 108,981        108,566        
Shares outstanding 9,610,730     10,242,292   

Book value per common share 11.34$          10.60$          
RATIOS Return on average equity 21.47            % 22.16            %

Return on average assets 1.57              1.61              
Average equity to average assets 7.30              7.25              

Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent) 5.06              5.16              
Efficiency ratio 54.17            52.34            

Net (recoveries) charge-offs to average net loans (0.01)             0.36              

Financial Highlights
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 
 

Suffolk Bancorp Annual Meeting 
Tuesday, April 8, 2008, 1:00 P.M. 

Suffolk County National Bank 
Administrative Center 

Lower Level 
Four West Second Street 

Riverhead, New York 
 

S.E.C. Form 10-K 
The Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 
10-K and documents incorporated by reference can be obtained, without 

charge, by writing to the Secretary, Suffolk Bancorp, 4 West Second Street, 
Riverhead, New York 11901, or call (631) 727-5667, fax to (631) 727-3214, 

or e-mail to  
invest@suffolkbancorp.com 

 
Trading 

Suffolk Bancorp’s common stock is traded over-the-counter, and is listed on 
the NASDAQ National Market System under the symbol “SUBK.”  

 
Registrar and Transfer Agent 

Any questions about the registration or transfer of shares, the payment,  
reinvestment, or direct deposit of dividends can be answered by: 

 
American Stock Transfer 

& Trust Co. 
59 Maiden Lane 

New York, New York 10038 
1-800-937-5449 

www.amstock.com 
 

Registered Independent Public Accountant 
Grant Thornton LLP 

Two Commerce Square 
Suite 3100 

2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103 

 
General Counsel 

Smith, Finkelstein, Lundberg,  
 Isler & Yakaboski, LLP 

456 Griffing Avenue 
Riverhead, New York 11901 

 
FDIC Rules and Regulations, Part 350.4(d) 

This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or  
relevance, by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
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“FOCUS—DISCIPLINE—CONSISTENCY” 

 

Dear Shareholder: 

 

It is gratifying to have encouraging news to report 

for a period of time when financial markets were so 

unpredictable. Suffolk Bancorp and its wholly 

owned subsidiary, Suffolk County National Bank, 

were able to perform consistently and well during 

2007, a year during which the markets for credit and 

housing took sharp downturns and a number of fi-

nancial institutions performed poorly. This resulted 

in something of a crisis in liquidity, and much more 

expensive funding than during the previous year.  

Key results at Suffolk include the following:  

 

Net income was $22,128,000, down 2.2 percent 

from $22,628,000 last year. However, earnings-per-

share were $2.24, up 1.8 percent compared to $2.20 

during 2006, owing to tight management of  capital  

to the regulatory standard of “well-capitalized,” 

while also maximizing profitability for our share-

holders. Net interest income decreased by 2.7 per-

cent, to $63,964,000 from $65,710,000. Our average 

loan portfolio grew slightly from last year, by 1.4 

percent. As liquidity contracted both domestically 

and globally as a result of recent losses in the sub-

prime mortgage markets, deposits were flat and 

there was migration from non-maturity time depos-

its to higher yielding certificates of deposit. Average 

borrowings increased, resulting in a substantial in-

crease in interest expense and small declines in net 

interest income margin. Income other than from 

interest was essentially flat, with decreases in service 

charges offset by a 12.5 percent increase in trust 

revenue. We kept a tight rein on non-interest ex-

pense, which increased slightly, by 1.0 percent, to 

$40,392,000 from $39,975,000. 

 

To put that in perspective, return on average equity 

(“ROE”) was 21.47, down slightly from 22.16 per-

cent last year, thus making seven consecutive years 

that this measure has exceeded 20 percent. That 

compares to ROE of 8.40 percent for banks in the 

New York metropolitan area at September 30, 2007, 

the date of the most recently available information 

(source: SNL Securities). We expect the spread be-

tween Suffolk’s performance and that of our region 

to be even wider once fourth quarter results are fully 

known. Return on average assets decreased to 1.57 

percent from 1.61 percent, again compared to 0.80 

percent for the New York metro area. Our net inter-

est margin decreased to 5.06 percent from 5.16 per-

cent, compared to 3.59 percent in greater New York. 

The quality of our assets remains high, with net re-

coveries of 0.01 percent for the year compared to 

net charge-offs of 0.30 percent for New York met-

ropolitan banks. The Allowance for Loan Losses is 

4.66 times non-performing loans. While the provi-

sion for possible loan losses was increased during 

the fourth quarter to reflect our historic methodol-

ogy in computing the allowance, it was down 61 per-
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cent for the year. Our efficiency ratio did increase 

from year to year to 54.17 percent compared to 

52.34 percent, but was, again, substantially better 

than the 68.62 percent recently posted by our re-

gional competitors.  

 

The biggest challenges in the past year remained in 

funding our operations, as major players in world-

wide markets have bid up the price of funds as they 

wrote down a significant portion of their invest-

ments in mortgages and mortgage-backed securities, 

as well as other exotic financial instruments. They 

were forced to finance their losses in the same mar-

kets we draw upon for our own funding. 

 

If the following remarks sound familiar to those I 

have made in the past, they are and should be. Bank-

ing is an incremental business, built on margins. 

Achievement in this industry is based on a disci-

plined and careful approach to maintaining those 

margins. We build our balance sheet one, carefully 

underwritten loan at a time; one, thoughtfully con-

sidered security at a time; and one, correctly priced 

deposit at a time. Key is the ability to adhere to con-

sistent and well-considered standards, in both boom 

times and in times like these. The true value in our 

business lies in the relationships we build with our 

customers over months and years. There are no sud-

den pops or sizzle at a well-run bank, just a steady 

accumulation of value based on the time value of 

money over the long-run. Success lies in doing a 

great number of small things well while avoiding ma-

jor mistakes. As an example, once again, I would like 

to remind investors that we have maintained our 

standards, both in the loans we make directly, and by 

investing in collateralized mortgage obligations the 

quality and structure of which we have evaluated just 

as carefully as we underwrite our loans. We want to 

preserve our place among the higher performing 

banks in the nation. 

 

2008 will be a difficult year as financial markets and 

the economy in general sort themselves out. We are 

ready, clearly and sharply focused on our sharehold-

ers’, customers’, and employees’ common interests, 

today, tomorrow, and in the years to come. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thomas S. Kohlmann 

Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer 
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PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS 
 
Suffolk’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market, and is quoted on the NASDAQ National Market System under the 
symbol “SUBK.” Following are quarterly high and low prices of Suffolk’s common stock as reported by NASDAQ. 

SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

2007 High Low Dividends 2006 High Low Dividends
First Quarter 38.80$    30.56$    0.22$     First Quarter 37.00$    31.77$    0.22$     
Second Quarter 34.00     29.75     0.22 Second Quarter 35.00     28.17     0.22
Third Quarter 33.92     25.55     0.22 Third Quarter 35.00     29.30     0.22
Fourth Quarter 36.00     29.54     0.22 Fourth Quarter 38.95     31.01     0.22

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY: (dollars in thousands except shares and per-share amounts)
For the year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 
Interest income 89,081$           86,209$           75,673$           67,984$           70,995$           
Interest expense 25,117             20,499             11,312             7,379              9,801              
Net interest income 63,964             65,710             64,361             60,605             61,194             
Provision for loan losses 377                 966                 1,575              1,973              932                 
Net interest income after provision 63,587             64,744             62,786             58,632             60,262             
Other income 10,595             10,672             10,145             12,294             11,310             
Other expense 40,392             39,975             37,453             36,621             36,190             
Income before income taxes 33,790            35,441           35,478           34,305             35,382           
Provision for income taxes 11,662             12,813             13,376             13,430             14,046             
Net Income 22,128$           22,628$           22,102$           20,875$           21,336$           
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31:
Federal funds sold 2,700$             -$                -$                2,500$             4,300$             
Investment securities -- available for sale 392,796           403,246           400,038           427,678           376,189           
Investment securities -- held to maturity 17,611             15,097             17,274             14,461             14,641             
Total investment securities 410,407           418,343           417,312           442,139           390,830           
Net loans 951,128           883,896           895,209           817,220           830,510           
Total assets 1,470,581         1,392,649         1,409,866         1,348,218         1,328,757         
Total deposits 1,143,375         1,139,075         1,158,707         1,197,592         1,187,496         
Other borrowings 198,320           120,135           127,975           25,300             20,000             
Stockholders' equity 108,981$         108,566$         102,001$         106,212$         100,170$         
SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS:
Performance:
Return on average equity 21.47              % 22.16              % 22.18              % 20.85              % 21.93              %
Return on average assets 1.57                1.61                1.59                1.53                1.64                
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent) 5.06                5.16                5.09                4.90                5.13                
Efficiency ratio 54.17              52.34              50.28              50.24              49.91              
Average equity to average assets 7.30                7.25                7.19                7.35                7.50                
Dividend pay-out ratio 39.70              39.19              37.56              39.69              38.74              
Asset quality:
Non-performing assets to total loans, net of discount 0.17                0.09                0.49                0.65                0.22                
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.11                0.06                0.32                0.40                0.14                
Allowance to non-performing assets 465.53             916.38             220.41             153.06             470.09             
Allowance to loans, net of discount 0.80                0.85                1.09                0.99                1.02                
Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average net loans (0.01)               0.36                (0.01)               0.28                0.13                
PER-SHARE DATA:
Net income (basic) 2.24                2.20                2.09                1.92                1.92                
Cash dividends 0.88                0.88                0.79                0.76                0.76                
Book value at year-end 11.34              10.60              9.80                9.80                9.15                
Highest market value 38.80              38.95              37.00              36.30              37.58              
Lowest market value 25.55              28.17              25.68              29.69              29.40              
Average shares outstanding 9,895,301         10,279,870       10,570,896       10,882,327       11,055,897       
Number of full-time-equivalent employees 350                 357                 369                 374                 377                 
Number of branch offices 29                  27                  27                  26                  26                  
Number of automatic teller machines 26                  26                  25                  25                  24                  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
 
The discussion that follows analyzes Suffolk Bancorp’s (“Suffolk”) operations for each of the past three years and its financial condition 
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Selected tabular data are presented for each of the past five years. 

 
 

Summary of Recent Developments and Current Trends 
 

Suffolk Bancorp is a one-bank holding company engaged in the commercial banking business through The Suffolk County National 
Bank, a full-service commercial bank headquartered in Riverhead, New York. “SCNB” is Suffolk Bancorp’s wholly owned subsidiary. 
Organized in 1890, Suffolk County National Bank is headquartered on Long Island, with 29 offices in Suffolk County, New York. 
 
Recent Developments 
 
Interest rates remained steady during the first nine months of 2007, then declined in the fourth quarter, in part as a result of reductions to 
the federal funds and discount target rates set by the Federal Reserve Board. Late during the third quarter, financial markets developed 
increased volatility as certain investors reported losses in subprime mortgages. That volatility increased throughout the fourth quarter as 
some major financial institutions announced write-downs of securities backed by those mortgages, and as the value of residential real es-
tate declined. Suffolk’s net interest margin, on a taxable-equivalent basis, decreased to 5.06 percent from 5.16 percent, year to year.  
 
Return on average equity decreased, to 21.47 percent for the year from 22.16 percent during 2006, and basic earnings-per-share increased 
to $2.24, from $2.20 during the prior year. 
 
Key to maintaining performance was close management of the balance sheet. Steps included: 
 

• Continued repositioning of the investment portfolio from maturing collateralized mortgage obligations, originally purchased 
to provide downside protection from falling rates, to purchase municipal securities currently providing liquidity as well as 
higher returns, and some protection against falling interest rates. 

 
• Pursuing an ongoing program of capital management, which applies leverage to shareholders’ investment by means of the 

selective repurchase of shares, while maintaining “well-capitalized” status with regulatory agencies. During the year, Suffolk 
repurchased approximately 6.2 percent of the shares outstanding at the beginning of 2007.  

 
• Maintaining emphasis on both commercial and personal demand deposits, while responding to increased call for time cer-

tificates of $100,000 or more. Demand deposits decreased 0.9 percent year to year, while other interest-bearing deposits 
increased by 1.1 percent. Time certificates of $100,000 or more increased 42.7% year to year. Continued emphasis on evalu-
ating the “marginal-cost-of-funds” in determining where to obtain funds. 

 
• Managing net loan charge-offs/recoveries aggressively. During 2007, net recoveries amounted to 1 basis point (“bp”) of net 

loans, an amount that was better than net charge-offs posted by the banking industry as a whole. 
 
• Consistent underwriting and pricing for lending to preserve both credit quality and yields in the face of competition. Con-

tinuing emphasis on preservation of margins over less profitable growth. 
 
Current Trends 
 

• Continued changes in the balance of funding from deposits to borrowings from capital markets were undertaken to moder-
ate the rate of increase in interest paid for deposits. During 2007, there was a sharp reduction in the liquidity of money mar-
kets in response to losses in subprime mortgages, leading some large institutions to borrow aggressively. Short-term money 
rates have typically exceeded targets set by the Federal Reserve Bank, and provoked sharp competition for funds. 

 
• Commercial loans and mortgages, residential mortgages, and construction loans offset the decline in home equity and con-

sumer loans, with increasing rates of return. Certain competitors continue to price loans without an appropriate premium 
for the risk inherent in their longer terms. 
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Suffolk’s Business 
 
Nearly all of Suffolk’s business is to provide banking services to its commercial and retail customers in Suffolk County, on Long Island, 
New York. Suffolk is a one-bank holding company. Its banking subsidiary, Suffolk County National Bank (the “Bank”), operates 29 full-
service offices in Suffolk County, New York. It offers a full line of domestic, retail, and commercial banking services, and trust services. 
The Bank’s primary lending area includes all of Suffolk County, New York, and a limited number of loans or loan-participations in the 
adjacent markets of Nassau County and New York City. The Bank makes loans that are secured by commercial real estate and float with 
the prime rate, and that are retained in the Bank’s portfolio: commercial and industrial loans to small manufacturers, wholesalers, builders, 
farmers, and retailers, including dealer financing. The Bank serves as an indirect lender to the customers of a number of automobile dealers. 
The Bank also makes loans secured by residential mortgages, and both fixed and floating rate second mortgage loans with a variety of plans 
for repayment. Real estate construction loans are also offered. 
 
Other investments are made in short-term United States Treasury debt, high-quality obligations of municipalities in New York and other 
states, issues of agencies of the United States government, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, and stock in the 
Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, each required as a condition of membership. 
 
The Bank finances most of its activities with deposits, including demand, saving, N.O.W., and money market accounts, as well as term cer-
tificates. It also relies on other short-term sources of funds, including inter-bank overnight loans, and sale-repurchase agreements. 
 

General Economic Conditions 
 
Long Island has a population of approximately 2.8 million people, which accounts for 20 percent of the population of New York State. 
Health services and education clusters grew the fastest of all industry clusters over the past five years. Long Island’s overall private sector 
employment grew by about 9 percent between 1998 and 2007; however, more recently, private sector employment declined by 2% from 
2006 to 2007. Average pay per employee on Long Island increased 6% from 1998 to 2007 compared to the national average, which rose 
15%, indicating that national income has grown faster than on Long Island. (Source: Long Island Index 2008) 
 
The economy on Long Island continued to show a decrease in growth during 2007. Following several consecutive years with double-digit 
increases, home sales and prices continued to level off during 2007. Interest rates remained steady during 2007, until the fourth quarter 
when rates declined 100 bp. Demand for finance, information, transportation, and tourism continued, and employment remained stable in 
the region. Long Island has a highly educated and skilled work force and a diverse industrial base. It is adjacent to New York City, one of 
the world’s largest centers of distribution and a magnet for finance and culture. The island’s economic cycles vary from those of the na-
tional economy. In general, Long Island’s economy seems to have been more stable than the national economy, owing in part to its com-
parative diversity. 
 

Results of Operations 
 

Net Income 
 
Net income was $22,128,000 compared to $22,628,000 last year and $22,102,000 in 2005. These figures represent a decrease of 2.2 percent 
and an increase of 2.4 percent, respectively. Basic earnings-per-share were $2.24 during 2007, compared to $2.20 last year and $2.09 in 
2005. 
 

Net Interest Income 
 
Net interest income during 2007 was $63,964,000, down 2.7 percent from $65,710,000 in 2006, which was up 2.1 percent from $64,361,000 
in 2005. Net interest income is the most important part of the net income of Suffolk. The effective interest rate differential, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, was 5.06 percent in 2007, 5.16 percent during 2006, and 5.09 percent in 2005. Average rates on average interest-earning 
assets increased to 6.96 percent in 2007, up from 6.72 percent in 2006, and 5.97 percent in 2005. Average rates on average interest-bearing 
liabilities increased to 2.91 percent in 2007, up from 2.39 percent in 2006, and 1.34 percent in 2005. The interest rate differential decreased 
in 2007, from 2006 and 2005. Demand deposits remained a significant source of funds as a percentage of total liabilities. 
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Average Assets, Liabilities, Stockholders’ Equity, Rate Spread, and Effective Interest Rate Differential 
(on a taxable-equivalent basis) 

 
The following table illustrates the average composition of Suffolk’s statements of condition. It presents an analysis of net interest income 
on a taxable-equivalent basis, listing each major category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as other assets and 
liabilities: (dollars in thousands) 

Interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis includes the additional amount of interest income that would have been earned if Suffolk’s 
investment in nontaxable U.S. Treasury securities and state and municipal obligations had been subject to New York State and federal 
income taxes yielding the same after-tax income. The rate used for this adjustment was approximately 34 percent for federal income taxes 
and 9 percent for New York State income taxes for all periods. For each of the years 2007, 2006, and 2005, $1.00 of nontaxable income 
from obligations of states and political subdivisions equates to fully taxable income of $1.52, and $1.00 of nontaxable income from tax-
able obligations of state and political subdivisions equates to fully taxable income of $1.50. In addition, in 2007, 2006, and 2005, $1.00 of 
nontaxable income on U.S. Treasury securities equates to $1.02 of fully taxable income. Various loan fees included in interest income 
amounted to $2,156,000, $2,664,000, and $2,376,000 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

Interest-earning assets
U.S. Treasury securities 9,526$        406$      4.26 % 9,580$        405$      4.23 % 9,416$        393$      4.17 %
Collateralized mortgage obligations 142,876      7,605     5.32 174,680      7,887     4.52 230,248      9,457     4.11
Mortgage-backed securities 953            67         7.03 1,369         95         6.94 2,733         140        5.12
Obligations of states & political subdivisions 139,429      8,234    5.91 101,923    6,072   5.96 57,587        3,269   5.68
U.S. government agency obligations 114,190      4,576     4.01 122,573      4,879     3.98 125,443      4,896     3.90
Corporate bonds & other securities 5,727         423        7.39 5,755         343        5.96 3,055         147        4.81
Federal funds sold & securities purchased 
     under agreements to resell 2,637         140        5.31 5,426         281        5.18 2,904         91         3.13
Loans, including non-accrual loans
  Commercial, financial & agricultural loans 193,885      16,213   8.36 185,548    15,192  8.19 169,338      11,392  6.73
  Commercial real estate mortgages 298,632      22,480   7.53 305,121    22,883  7.50 288,065      19,965  6.93
  Real estate construction loans 84,610        8,786    10.38 71,290      7,283   10.22 56,191        5,134   9.14
  Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) 158,294      10,160   6.42 134,687    8,829   6.56 117,575      7,476   6.36
  Home equity loans 68,239        5,725    8.39 78,464      6,373   8.12 78,465        5,082   6.48
  Consumer loans 98,739        7,084    7.17 115,807    7,766   6.71 142,426      9,268   6.51
  Other loans 2,489         -        -        1,671         -        -        2,098         -        -        
Total interest-earning assets 1,320,226$  91,899$  6.96 % 1,313,894$  88,288$  6.72 % 1,285,544$  76,710$  5.97 %
Cash & due from banks 46,744$      47,044$      47,803$      
Other non-interest-earning assets 45,611        47,713        52,732        
Total assets 1,412,581$  1,408,651$  1,386,079$  

Interest-bearing liabilities
Saving, N.O.W. & money market deposits 417,472$    4,838$   1.16 % 475,634$   4,791$   1.01 % 561,137$    3,689$   0.66 %
Time deposits 311,098      13,275    4.27 245,996      8,748     3.56 218,825      5,431     2.48
Total saving & time deposits 728,570      18,113    2.49 721,630      13,539    1.88 779,962      9,120     1.17
Federal funds purchased & securities 
   sold under agreements to repurchase 54,531        2,876    5.27 58,678      2,955   5.04 35,208        1,252   3.56
Other borrowings 79,328        4,128     5.20 78,833        4,005     5.08 27,961        940        3.36
Total interest-bearing liabilities 862,429$    25,117$  2.91 % 859,141$    20,499$  2.39 % 843,131$    11,312$  1.34 %

Rate spread 4.05 % 4.33 % 4.63 %
Non-interest-bearing deposits 425,553$    431,067$    423,214$    
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities 21,547        16,342        20,066        
Total liabilities 1,309,529$  1,306,550$  1,286,411$  
Stockholders' equity 103,052      102,101      99,668        
Total liabilities & stockholders' equity 1,412,581$  1,408,651$  1,386,079$  

Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) 
     & effective interest rate differential 66,782$  5.06 % 67,789$  5.16 % 65,398$  5.09 %
Less: taxable-equivalent basis adjustment (2,818)    (2,079)    (1,037)    
Net interest income 63,964$  65,710$  64,361$  
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income 
 

The table below presents a summary of changes in interest income, interest expense, and the resulting net interest income on a taxable-
equivalent basis for the periods presented, each as compared with the preceding period. Because of numerous, simultaneous changes in 
volume and rate during the period, it is not possible to allocate precisely the changes between volumes and rates. In this table changes not 
due solely to volume or to rate have been allocated to these categories based on percentage changes in average volume and average rate as 
they compare to each other: (in thousands)  

Interest Income 
 
Interest income increased to $89,081,000 in 2007, up 3.3 percent from $86,209,000 in 2006, and 13.9 percent from $75,673,000 in 2005. 
 

Investment Securities 
 
Average investment in U.S. government agency securities decreased to $114,190,000 from $122,573,000 in 2006, and $125,443,000 in 2005. 
Average balances of CMO’s decreased to $142,876,000 in 2007 from $174,680,000 in 2006, and $230,248,000 in 2005. Average investments 
in municipal securities increased to $139,429,000 in 2007, up from $101,923,000 in 2006 and $57,587,000 in 2005. U.S. Treasury, U.S. gov-
ernment agency, collateralized mortgage obligations, and municipal securities provide collateral for various liabilities to municipal deposi-
tors. Securities are Suffolk’s primary source of liquidity. With regard to securities characterized as available for sale, in general, Suffolk has 
the intent and ability to hold them until maturity. The following table summarizes Suffolk’s investment securities available for sale and held 
to maturity as of the dates indicated: (in thousands) 

Volume Rate Net Change Volume Rate Net Change
Interest-earning assets
U.S. Treasury securities (2)$               3$                1$                7$                5$                12$               
Collateralized mortgage obligations (1,566)           1,284            (282)              (2,443)           873               (1,570)           
Mortgage-backed securities (29)               1                  (28)               (84)               40                (44)               
Obligations of states & political subdivisions 2,218 (56) 2,162            2,601 202 2,803            
U.S. government agency obligations (336) 33 (303)              (113) 96 (17)               
Corporate bonds & other securities (2)                 82                80                154               42                196               
Federal funds sold  & securities purchased 
    under agreements to resell (148) 7 (141)            108 81 189             
Loans, including non-accrual loans 949 1,173 2,122            2,710 7,299 10,009           
Total interest-earning assets 1,084$           2,527$           3,611$           2,940$           8,638$           11,578$         
Interest-bearing liabilities
Saving, N.O.W., & money market deposits (625)$           672$            47$              (629)$            1,731$          1,102$          
Time deposits 2,579            1,948            4,527            739               2,578            3,317            
Federal funds purchased & securities 
    sold under agreements to repurchase (215)            136             (79)             2,908           22               2,930          
Other borrowings 25                98                123               667               1,171            1,838            
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,764$           2,854$           4,618$           3,685$           5,502$           9,187$           

Net change in net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) (680)$            (327)$            (1,007)$          (745)$            3,136$           2,391$           

In 2007 over 2006
Changes Due to

In 2006 over 2005
Changes Due to

December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value:

U.S. Treasury securities 9,838$             9,423$             9,337$             
U.S. government agency debt securities 105,066           122,883           123,421           
Collateralized mortgage obligations agency issues 129,562           156,239           194,404           
Mortgage-backed securities 859                 1,072               1,788               
Obligations of states & political subdivisions 147,471           113,629           71,088             

Total investment securities available for sale 392,796           403,246           400,038           
Investment securities held to maturity:

Obligations of states & political subdivisions 9,055               9,913               11,378             
Corporate bonds & other securities 8,556               5,184               5,896               

Total investment securities held to maturity 17,611             15,097             17,274             
Total investment securities 410,407$          418,343$          417,312$          

Fair value of investment securities held to maturity 18,199$           15,647$           17,885$           
Unrealized gains 603                 588                 664                 
Unrealized losses 15                   38                   53                   
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The amortized cost, maturities, and approximate weighted average yields, at December 31, 2007 are as follows: (in thousands) 

As a member of the Federal Reserve System, the Bank owns Federal Reserve Bank stock with a book value of $638,000. Being an equity 
investment, the stock has no maturity. There is no public market for this investment. The last dividend was 6.0 percent. 
 
As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, the Bank owns Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock with a book 
value of $7,818,000. Being an equity investment, the stock has no maturity. There is no public market for this investment. The last declared 
dividend was 8.05 percent. 
 

Loan Portfolio 
 
Loans, net of unearned discounts but before the allowance for loan losses, totaled $958,800,000. Loans secured by commercial real estate 
amounted to $318,601,000 and comprise 33.2 percent of the portfolio, the largest single component, up from $292,458,000 in 2006, and 
$308,436,000 in 2005. Commercial and industrial loans followed at $204,242,000, up 11.7 percent from $182,840,000 at the end of 2006. 
These loans are made to small local businesses throughout Suffolk County. Commercial loan balances are seasonal, particularly in the 
Hamptons where retail inventories rise in the spring and decline by autumn. Consumer loans are a declining part of the portfolio. Net of 
unearned discounts, they totaled $99,314,000 at the end of 2007, down 3.7 percent from $103,102,000 at year-end 2006. Consumer loans 
include primarily indirect, dealer-generated automobile loans. Competition among commercial banks and with captive finance companies 
of automobile manufacturers has reduced yields and volume. Additionally, rising fuel costs and uncertainties regarding the economy have 
led to a decline in consumer confidence, affecting automobile sales. As commerce on Long Island strengthened, commercial loans and 
mortgages offered continuing opportunity.  
 
The remaining significant components of the loan portfolio are residential mortgages at $184,743,000, up 19.1 percent from $155,107,000; 
home equity loans at $67,081,000, down 12.2 percent from $76,361,000; and construction loans at $83,715,000, up 3.8 percent from 
$80,687,000. Current economic trends continue to indicate a slowing housing market, as inventories of unsold homes and foreclosures 
increased. 
 
The following table categorizes total loans (net of unearned discounts) at December 31: (in thousands) 

U.S. Obligations of Obligations of Corporate Bonds
U.S. Treasury Govt. Agency States & Political States & Political &

Securities Debt Subdivisions Subdivisions Other Securities
Fair Fair Fair Amortized Amortized

Maturity (in years) Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Total Yield
Within 1 -$       -   % 46,940$   4.27  -$       -   2,326$      3.95  % -$    -   49,266$   4.25  %
After 1 but within 5 9,838      4.18  58,126     3.80  % 3,521      3.78  1,501        4.12  % -      -   72,986$   3.86  %
After 5 but within 10 -         -   -          -   92,348    3.62  5,018        5.48  -      -   97,366$   3.72  %
After 10 -         -   -          -   51,602    3.91  % 210          3.81  % -      -   51,812$   3.91  %
Other securities -         -   -          -   -         -   -           -   8,556   -   8,556$    -    
Subtotal 9,838$    4.18  % 105,066$  4.01  % 147,471$ 3.73  % 9,055$      4.82  % 8,556$ -   279,986$ 3.77  %
Collateralized mortgage obligations 129,562$ 5.48  %
Mortgage-backed securities 859$       7.38  %
Total 9,838$    4.18  % 105,066$  4.01  % 147,471$ 3.73  % 9,055$      4.82  % 8,556$ -   410,407$ 4.32  %

Held to Maturity------------------------ Available for Sale ------------------------

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Commercial, financial & agricultural loans 204,242$    21.3% 182,840$    20.5% 179,523$    19.8% 158,205$    19.2% 171,616$    20.4%
Commercial real estate mortgages 318,601      33.2% 292,458      32.8% 308,436      34.1% 262,262      31.8% 232,119      27.7%
Real estate -- construction loans 83,715       8.7% 80,687       9.1% 67,411       7.5% 50,455       6.1% 30,461       3.6%
Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) 184,743      19.3% 155,107      17.4% 131,006      14.5% 114,969      13.9% 113,979      13.6%
Home equity loans 67,081       7.0% 76,361       8.6% 80,775       8.9% 75,486       9.1% 60,397       7.2%
Consumer loans 99,314       10.3% 103,102      11.5% 132,930      14.7% 162,206      19.7% 229,711      27.4%
Other loans 1,104         0.1% 892           0.1% 4,956         0.5% 1,847         0.2% 778           0.1%
Total loans (net of unearned discounts) 958,800$    100% 891,447$    100% 905,037$    100% 825,430$    100% 839,061$    100%
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Non-Performing Loans 
 

Generally, recognition of interest income is discontinued when reasonable doubt exists as to whether interest can be collected. Ordinarily, 
loans no longer accrue interest when 90 days past due. When a loan stops accruing interest, all interest accrued in the current year, but not 
collected, is reversed against interest income in the current year. Any interest accrued in prior years is charged against the allowance for 
loan losses. Loans start accruing interest again when they become current as to principal and interest, and when, in the opinion of manage-
ment, they can be collected in full. All non-performing loans are reflected in the foregoing tables.  
The following table shows non-accrual, past due, and restructured loans at December 31: (in thousands) 

Interest on loans that are restructured or are no longer accruing interest would have amounted to about $131,000 for 2007 under the con-
tractual terms of those loans. Suffolk records the payment of interest on such loans as a reduction of principal. Interest income recognized 
on restructured and non-accrual loans was immaterial for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005. Suffolk has a formal procedure for internal credit 
review to more precisely identify risk and exposure in the loan portfolio. A single credit, the circumstances of which are particular to that 
loan, was charged off during 2006. Management does not believe that it is reflective of a systemic weakness in the loan portfolio or of the 
underwriting standards and procedures.  
  

Summary of Loan Losses and Allowance for Loan Losses 
  
The allowance for loan losses is determined by continuous analysis of the loan portfolio. That analysis includes changes in the size and 
composition of the portfolio, historical loan losses, industry-wide losses, current and anticipated economic trends, and details about indi-
vidual loans. It also includes estimates of the actual value of collateral and other possible sources of repayment. There can be no assurance 
that the allowance is, in fact, adequate. When a loan, in full or in part, is deemed uncollectible, it is charged against the allowance. This hap-
pens when it is well past due and the borrower has not shown the ability or intent to make the loan current, or the borrower does not have 
enough assets to pay the debt, or the value of the collateral is less than the balance of the loan and not likely to improve soon. Residential 
real estate and consumer loans are analyzed as a group and not individually because of the large number of loans, small balances, and his-
torically low losses. In the future, the provision for loan losses may change as a percentage of total loans. The percentage of net recoveries 
to average net loans during 2007 was 0.01 percent, compared to net charge-offs of 0.36 percent in 2006, and net recoveries of 0.01 percent 
during 2005. The ratio of the allowance for loan losses to loans, net of discounts, was 0.80 percent at the end of 2007, down from 0.85 
percent in 2006 and 1.09 percent in 2005. A summary of transactions follows: (in thousands) 

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loans accruing but past due contractually

 90 days or more 23$           68$           -$          -$          1,286$       
Loans not accruing interest 1,648         824           4,459         5,337         1,784         
Restructured loans -            -            -            27             35             
Total 1,671$       892$          4,459$       5,364$       3,105$       

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Allowance for loan losses, January 1, 7,551$           9,828$           8,210$           8,551$           8,695$           

Loans charged-off:
Commercial, financial & agricultural loans 133               3,547            180               2,130            110               
Commercial real estate mortgages -               -               -               -               -               
Real estate -- construction loans -               -               -               -               -               
Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) -               -               -               -               -               
Home equity loans -               -               -               -               62                
Consumer loans 48                210               428               1,059            1,835            
Lease finance -               -               -               -               -               
Other loans -               -               -               -               5                  
Total Charge-offs 181$             3,757$           608$             3,189$           2,012$           
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The following table summarizes the allowance for loan losses allocated by loan type: (dollars in thousands) 

The following table presents information concerning loan balances and asset quality: (dollars in thousands) 

Interest Expense 
 

Interest expense in 2007 was $25,117,000, up from $20,499,000 the year before, and $11,312,000 during 2005. Most interest was paid for 
the deposits of individuals, businesses, and various governments and their agencies. Short-term borrowings include federal funds pur-
chased (short-term lending by other banks), securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings. 
The Federal Reserve Bank discount window was available though not used during 2007. Short-term borrowings averaged $133,859,000 
during 2007, $137,511,000 during 2006, and $63,169,000 during 2005. 
  

Deposits 
  
Average interest-bearing deposits increased to $728,570,000 in 2007, up 1.0 percent from $721,630,000 in 2006. Saving, N.O.W., and 
money market deposits decreased during 2007, averaging $417,472,000, down 12.2 percent from 2006 when they averaged $475,634,000. 
Average time certificates of less than $100,000 totaled $201,941,000, up 1.4 percent from $199,109,000 in 2006. Average time certificates 
of $100,000 or more totaled $109,157,000, up 132.8% from $46,887,000 during 2006. The Bank did not have any brokered deposits as of 
December 31, 2007. Each of the Bank’s demand deposit accounts has a related non-interest-bearing sweep account. The sole purpose of 
the sweep accounts is to reduce the non-interest-bearing reserve balances that the Bank is required to maintain with the Federal Reserve 
Bank, and thereby increase funds available for investment. Although the sweep accounts are classified as saving accounts for regulatory 
purposes, they are included in demand deposits in the accompanying consolidated statements of condition.  

% of % of % of % of % of 
As of December 31, 2007 Total 2006 Total 2005 Total 2004 Total 2003 Total
Commercial, financial & agricultural loans 3,762$      49.0% 2,852$      37.7% 5,209$      53.0% 4,004$      48.8% 3,072$      35.9%
Commercial real estate mortgages 2,264        29.5% 2,139        28.3% 2,431        24.7% 2,597        31.6% 2,939        34.4%
Real estate -- construction loans 542          7.1% 518          6.9% 388          4.0% 261          3.2% 208          2.4%
Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) 239          3.1% 190          2.5% 162          1.7% 215          2.6% 233          2.7%
Home equity loans 290          3.8% 450          6.0% 502          5.1% 540          6.6% 551          6.4%
Consumer loans 334          4.4% 272          3.6% 434          4.4% 593          7.2% 1,389        16.3%
Unallocated allowance 241          3.1% 1,130        15.0% 702          7.1% -           0.0% 159          1.9%
Allowance for loan losses 7,672$      100% 7,551$      100% 9,828$      100% 8,210$      100% 8,551$      100%

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loans, net of discounts:
    Average 931,292$       901,351$       863,057$       825,348$       816,058$       
    At end of period 958,800         891,447         905,037         825,430         839,061         
Non-performing assets/total loans, net of discounts 0.17              % 0.09              % 0.49              % 0.65              % 0.22              %
Non-performing assets/total assets 0.11              0.06              0.32              0.40              0.14              
Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries)/average net loans (0.01)             0.36              (0.01)             0.28              0.13              
Net charge-offs (recoveries)/net loans at December 31, (0.00)             0.36              (0.00)             0.28              0.13              
Allowance for loan losses/loans, net of discounts 0.80              0.85              1.09              0.99              1.02              

Loans recovered after being charged-off 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Commercial, financial & agricultural loans 79                56                46                50                23                
Commercial real estate mortgages -               -               -               -               -               
Real estate -- construction loans -               -               -               -               -               
Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) -               -               -               -               -               
Home equity loans -               -               -               -               -               
Consumer loans 236               458               605               825               913               
Lease finance -               -               -               -               -               
Other loans -               -               -               -               -               
Total recoveries 315$             514$             651$             875$             936$             
Net loans charged-off (recovered) (134)              3,243            (43)               2,314            1,076            
Reclass to Allowance for Contingent Liabilities (1) (390)              -               -               -               -               
Provision for loan losses 377               966               1,575            1,973            932               
Allowance for loan losses, December 31, 7,672$           7,551$           9,828$           8,210$           8,551$           
(1) Prior year amounts not reclassified due to immateriality.
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The following table classifies average deposits for each of the periods indicated: (in thousands) 

 At December 31, 2007, the remaining maturities of time certificates of $100,000 or more were as follows: (in thousands) 

Short-Term Borrowings 
  
Suffolk uses short-term funding when it is advantageous to do so in comparison with the alternatives. As the yield curve remained in-
verted for a long duration in 2007, short-term funding activity continued at higher levels in 2007. This includes borrowings from the Fed-
eral Home Loan Bank, lines of credit for federal funds with correspondent banks, and retail sale-repurchase agreements. 
 
The following table summarizes borrowings: (dollars in thousands) 

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average

Average Rate Paid Average Rate Paid Average Rate Paid
Demand deposits 425,553$       431,067$       423,214$       
Saving deposits 255,276         0.82              % 301,457         0.69              % 364,837         0.54              %
N.O.W. & money market deposits 162,196         1.70              174,177         1.55              196,300         0.87              
Time certificates of $100,000 or more 109,157         4.67              46,887           4.34              19,969           2.72              
Other time deposits 201,941         4.05              199,109         3.37              198,856         2.46              
Total deposits 1,154,123$     1,152,697$     1,203,176$     

3 months or less 73,855$         
Over 3 through 6 months 33,857           
Over 6 through 12 months 984               
Over 12 months 8,099            
Total 116,795$       

Other Income 
 
Other income decreased to $10,595,000 during 2007, down 0.7 percent from $10,672,000 during 2006, which was up 5.2 percent from 
$10,145,000 during 2005. Service charges on deposit accounts decreased 2.5 percent from 2006 to 2007, and 2.2 percent from 2005 to 
2006. Other service charges were down 3.7 percent and up 21.8 percent for the same periods, respectively. Fiduciary fees in 2007 totaled 
$1,409,000, up 12.5 percent from 2006 when they amounted to $1,252,000, which was up 5.8 percent from 2005, at $1,183,000. There 
were no net gains or losses on sales of securities in 2007 and 2006. Net losses on sales of securities amounted to $22,000 in 2005. 
 

Other Expense 
 
Other expense during 2007 was $40,392,000, up 1.0 percent from 2006 when it was $39,975,000, which was up 6.7 percent from 
$37,453,000 in 2005. Salaries and employee benefits increased 2.1 percent, net occupancy expense grew by 3.0 percent, and equipment 
expense increased 4.5 percent, offset by a decrease in other operating expense of 3.1 percent. Deposits meeting certain regulatory criteria 
as to size held at SCNB are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). The Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act 
of 2005 merged the Bank Insurance Fund with the Savings Association Insurance Fund to form the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”). 
The FDIC maintains the DIF by assessing depository institutions an insurance premium. The amount each institution is assessed is based 
upon statutory factors that include the balance of insured deposits as well as the degree of risk the institution poses to the insurance fund. 
The FDIC granted a one-time initial assessment credit to recognize an institution’s past contributions to the DIF. For SCNB, this credit 
totaled $970,000. Up to ninety (90) percent of the credit may be applied to the annual assessment with the remainder carried forward to 
the next year. In 2007, approximately $631,000 of the one-time initial assessment credit offset DIF premiums of $777,000. The remainder 

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
December 31, balance 143,500$   67,000$    54,820$    53,135$    -$         -$         
Weighted-average interest rate
    on balances outstanding 4.26         % 5.37         % 4.45         % 5.32         % -           % -           %
Maximum amount outstanding
   at any month-end 143,500$   104,000$   54,820$    64,675$    -$            24,000$    
Daily average outstanding 79,328$    78,833$    55,930$    56,346$    601$        2,332$      
Average interest rate paid 5.20         % 5.08         % 5.28         % 5.01         % 4.87         % 5.67         %

Federal Home Loan Bank 
Borrowings Repurchase Agreements Federal Funds Purchased
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of the one-time initial assessment credit will be used in 2008. The provision for income taxes decreased from $12,813,000, for an effective 
income tax rate of 36.1 percent, to $11,662,000, for an effective income tax rate of 34.5 percent, primarily as a result of increased invest-
ment in municipal securities. 
 

Interest Rate Sensitivity 
  
Interest rate “sensitivity” is determined by the date when each asset and liability in Suffolk’s portfolio can be re-priced. Sensitivity increases 
when interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities cannot be re-priced at the same time. While this analysis presents the volume of 
assets and liabilities repricing in each period of time, it does not consider how quickly various assets and liabilities might actually be re-
priced in response to changes in interest rates. Management reviews its interest rate sensitivity regularly and adjusts its asset/liability man-
agement strategy accordingly. Because the interest rates of assets and liabilities vary according to their maturity, management may selec-
tively mismatch the repricing of assets and liabilities to take advantage of temporary or projected differences between short- and long-term 
interest rates. 
 
The following table reflects the sensitivity of Suffolk’s assets and liabilities at December 31, 2007: (dollars in thousands) 

At December 31, 2007, interest-bearing liabilities with maturities of less than one year exceed interest-earning assets of similar maturity. 
This cumulative gap might result in decreased net interest income if interest rates increase during the next twelve months. If interest rates 
decline, net interest income might increase. However, interest-earning assets with maturities of greater than one year exceed interest-
bearing liabilities of similar maturity. This cumulative gap might result in increased net interest income if interest rates increase beyond 
twelve months. If interest rates decline, net interest income might decrease. 
 

Market Risk 
  
Market risk is the risk that a financial instrument will lose value as the result of adverse changes in market prices, interest rates, foreign 
currency exchange rates, commodity prices, or the prices of equity securities. Suffolk’s primary exposure to market risk is to changing 
interest rates. 
  
Monitoring and managing this risk is an important part of Suffolk’s asset/liability management process. It is governed by policies estab-
lished by its Board of Directors. These policies are reviewed and approved annually. The Board delegates responsibility for asset/liability 
management to the Asset/Liability Committee (“ALCO”). ALCO then develops guidelines and strategies to implement the policy. 

Less than 3 to 6 7 to 12 More Than Not Rate
3 Months Months Months 1 Year Sensitive Total

Interest-earning assets

Domestic loans (1) (net of unearned discount) 386,065$     70,809$       101,479$     398,744$     1,703$        958,800$     
Investment securities (2) 18,775        19,344        54,488        306,507       11,292        410,406       
Federal funds sold 2,700          -             -             -             -             2,700          
Total interest-earning assets 407,540$     90,153$       155,967$     705,251$     12,995$       1,371,906$   

Demand deposits and interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits (3) 21,270$       21,270$       42,540$       338,145$     -$           423,225$     
N.O.W. & money market accounts (4) 4,204          85,229        8,409          67,268        -             165,110       
Borrowings 198,320       -             -             -             -             198,320       
Interest-bearing deposits (5) 260,468       101,603       16,096        176,873       -             555,040       
Total demand deposits & interest-bearing liabilities 484,262$     208,102$     67,045$       582,286$     -$           1,341,695$   
Gap (76,722)$      (117,949)$    88,922$       122,965$     12,995$       30,211$       
Cumulative difference between interest-earning
   assets and interest-bearing liabilities (76,722)$      (194,671)$    (105,749)$    17,216$       30,211$       
Cumulative difference/total assets (5.22%) (13.24%) (7.19%) 1.17% 2.05%
Footnotes to Interest Rate Sensitivity
(1) Based on contractual maturity and instrument repricing date, if applicable; projected prepayments and prepayments of principal based on experience.
(2) Based on contractual maturity, and projected prepayments based on experience. FRB and FHLB stock is not considered rate-sensitive.
(3) Based on experience of historical stable core deposit relationships.
(4) N.O.W. and money market accounts are assumed to decline over a period of five years.
(5) Fixed-rate deposits and deposits with fixed pricing intervals are reflected as maturing in the period of contractual maturity. Saving accounts are
     assumed to decline over a period of five years.

Maturity
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The following table illustrates the contractual sensitivity to changes in interest rates on the Company’s commercial, financial, agricultural, 
and real estate construction loans not including non-accrual loans totaling approximating $1,435,000 at December 31, 2007: (in thousands) 

 Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the sensitivity of earnings to changes in interest rates. As interest rates change, interest income and expense also 
change, thereby changing net interest income (“NII”). NII is the primary component of Suffolk’s earnings. ALCO uses a detailed and 
dynamic model to quantify the effect of sustained changes in interest rates on NII. While ALCO routinely monitors simulated NII sensi-
tivity two years into the future, it uses other tools to monitor longer term interest rate risk. 
  
The model measures the effect in the future of changing interest rates on both interest income and expense for all assets and liabilities, as 
well as for derivative financial instruments that do not appear on the balance sheet. The results are compared to ALCO policy limits that 
specify a maximum effect on NII one year in the future, assuming no growth in assets or liabilities, or 200 basis point (“bp”) change in 
interest rates upward and downward.  
 
Following is Suffolk’s NII sensitivity as of December 31, 2007. Suffolk’s Board has approved a policy limit of 12.5 percent. 

These estimates should not be interpreted as Suffolk’s forecast, and should not be considered as indicative of management’s expectations 
for operating results. They are hypothetical estimates that are based on many assumptions including: the nature and time of changes in 
interest rates, the shape of the “yield curve” (variations in interest rates for financial instruments of varying maturity at a given moment in 
time), prepayments on loans and securities, deposit outflows, pricing on loans and deposits, and the reinvestment of cash flows from as-
sets and liabilities, among other things. While these assumptions are based on management’s best estimate of current economic condi-
tions, Suffolk cannot give any assurance that they will actually predict results, nor can they anticipate how the behavior of customers and 
competitors may change in the future. 
 
Factors that may affect actual results include: prepayment and refinancing of loans other than as assumed, interest rate change caps and 
floors, repricing intervals on adjustable rate instruments, changes in debt service on adjustable rate loans, and early withdrawal of depos-
its. Actual results may also be affected by actions ALCO takes in response to changes in interest rates, actual or anticipated. 
 
When appropriate, ALCO may use off-balance-sheet instruments such as interest rate floors, caps, and swaps to hedge its position with 
regard to interest rate risk. The Board of Directors has approved a hedging policy statement that governs the use of such instruments. As 
of December 31, 2007, there were no derivative financial instruments outstanding. 
 
The following table illustrates the contractual sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the Company’s total loans, net of discounts, not 
including overdrafts and loans not accruing interest, together totaling $2,752,000 at December 31, 2007: (in thousands) 

Estimated NII Sensitivity
Rate Change to December 31, 2008

+200 basis point rate shock 0.80%
-200 basis point rate shock (1.10%)

Due Within After 1 but After 
Interest rate provision 1 Year Before 5 Years 5 Years Total
Predetermined rates 119,602$            161,053$                 34,540$                   315,195$                 
Floating or adjustable rates 438,751              186,740                   16,468                    641,959                   
Total 558,353$            347,793$                 51,008$                   957,154$                 

Due Within After 1 but After 
1 Year Before 5 Years 5 Years Total

Commercial, financial & agricultural
Predetermined rates 25,526$              65,587$                   6,561$                    97,674$                   
Floating or adjustable rates 102,393              2,740                      -                         105,133                   

127,919$            68,327$                   6,561$                    202,807$                 
Real estate construction
Predetermined rates -                    -                         -                         -                         
Floating or adjustable rates 83,715               -                         -                         83,715                    

83,715$              -$                       -$                       83,715$                   
Total 211,634$            68,327$                   6,561$                    286,522$                 
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Suffolk has not used, and has no intention to use, any significant off-balance-sheet financing arrangements for liquidity purposes. Its pri-
mary financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk are limited to loan servicing for others and obligations to fund loans to customers 
pursuant to existing commitments. 

 
Capital Resources 

 
Primary capital, including stockholders’ equity, not including the net unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for sale, net of tax, the 
comprehensive loss on the unfunded projected benefit obligation of the pension plan, and the allowance for loan losses, amounted to 
$115,810,000 at year-end 2007, compared to $120,187,000 at year-end 2006 and $114,107,000 at year-end 2005. During 2007, Suffolk re-
purchased 631,562 shares for an aggregate price of $20,227,305. Management determined that this would increase leverage while preserving 
capital ratios well above regulatory requirements. 
 
The following table presents Suffolk’s capital ratio and other related ratios for each of the past five years: (dollars in thousands) 

Asset/Liability Management & Liquidity 
 

The Asset/Liability Management Committee reviews Suffolk’s financial performance and compares it to the asset/liability management 
policy. The committee includes four outside directors, executive management, the senior lenders, the comptroller, and the head of risk 
management. It uses computer simulations to quantify interest rate risk and to project liquidity. The simulations also help the committee 
to develop contingent strategies to increase net interest income. The committee always assesses the impact of any change in strategy on 
Suffolk’s ability to make loans and repay deposits. Only strategies and policies that meet regulatory guidelines and that are appropriate 
under the economic and competitive circumstances are considered by the committee. Suffolk has not used forward contracts or interest 
rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. 
 

Contractual and Off-Balance-Sheet Obligations 
 

Following is a table describing certain liabilities not included in Suffolk’s consolidated statement of condition as well as borrowings and 
time deposits in the period in which they are due: (in thousands of dollars) 

In 2000, the Board adopted a policy whereby management will maximize both return on average equity and earnings-per-share, and there-
fore shareholder value, while maintaining the regulatory standard of “well capitalized.” That standard is 10 percent Total Risk-Based Capi-
tal, 6 percent Tier 1 Capital, and 5 percent Leverage Capital. When capital exceeds that standard by more than a small cushion over what 
is expected to be required to maintain the “well-capitalized” standard during the current quarter, shares may be repurchased as they be-
come available at prices that remain accretive to earnings-per-share in transactions under SEC rule 10-b 18 and in private purchases. 
When capital expected to be required during the current quarter does not exceed the standard, repurchases will not be made. Further, the 
dividend reinvestment program will automatically follow the same standard, purchasing shares in the market when Suffolk is in the mar-
ket to repurchase shares, and issuing from the reserve when it is not. Each of these replaces the prior practice of authorizing the repur-
chase of a specific number of shares by Suffolk, or the purchase or issuance of shares by the dividend reinvestment program without spe-
cific reference to capital ratios.  

2007 (1) 2006 (1) 2005 (1) 2004 (1) 2003 (1)

Primary capital at year-end 115,810$        120,187$        114,107$        112,951$        104,187$        
Primary capital at year-end as a percentage of year-end:
    Total assets plus allowance for loan losses 7.83% 8.58% 8.05% 8.33% 7.79%
    Loans, net of unearned discounts 12.08% 13.48% 12.61% 13.68% 12.42%
    Total deposits 10.13% 10.55% 9.85% 9.43% 8.77%

(1) Capital ratios do not include the effect of SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Investment Securities,”  nor SFAS No. 158, 
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” 

Contractual obligations Total Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 years More than 5 years
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings &
     repurchase agreements 198,320$     198,320$     -$           -$           -$           
Time deposits 315,693       278,234       17,561        19,898        -             
Operating lease obligations 10,219        1,064          2,152          2,014          4,989          
Purchase obligations 3,173        1,425        1,642        106            .
Total 527,405$     479,043$     21,355$       22,018$       4,989$        
Amounts listed as purchase obligations represent agreements to purchase services for Suffolk's core banking system.
Operating lease obligations do not reflect the two new offices scheduled to open during 2008.



 18 
 

Suffolk measures how effectively it uses capital by two widely accepted performance ratios: return on average assets and return on average 
common stockholders’ equity. The return in 2007 on average assets of 1.57 percent and average common equity of 21.47 percent com-
pared to 2006 when returns were 1.61 percent and 22.16 percent, respectively. 
 
All dividends must conform to applicable statutory requirements. Suffolk Bancorp’s ability to pay dividends depends on Suffolk County 
National Bank’s ability to pay dividends. Under 12 USC 56-9, a national bank may not pay a dividend on its common stock if the dividend 
would exceed net undivided profits then on hand. Further, under 12 USC 60, a national bank must obtain prior approval from the Office 
of the Comptroller of the Currency to pay dividends on either common or preferred stock that would exceed the bank’s net profits for the 
current year combined with retained net profits (net profits minus dividends paid during that period) of the prior two years. The amount 
the Bank currently has available to pay dividends is approximately $30,540,000. 
  

Risk-Based Capital and Leverage Guidelines 
  
The Federal Reserve Bank’s risk-based capital guidelines call for bank holding companies to require minimum ratios of capital to risk-
weighted assets, which include certain off-balance-sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit. The guidelines define capital as being 
“core,” or “Tier 1” capital, which includes common stockholders’ equity; a limited amount of perpetual preferred stock; minority interest in 
unconsolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill; or “supplementary” or “Tier 2” capital, which includes subordinated debt, redeemable preferred 
stock, and a limited amount of the allowance for loan losses. All bank holding companies must meet a minimum ratio of total qualifying 
capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.00 percent, of which at least 4.00 percent should be in the form of Tier 1 capital. At December 31, 2007 
Suffolk’s ratios of core capital and total qualifying capital (core capital plus Tier 2 capital) to risk-weighted assets were 9.52 percent and 
10.20 percent, respectively. 
 

 Discussion of New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In March 2006, FASB issued Statement No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets – an amendment of FASB Statement No. 
140.” This statement addresses the recognition and measurement of separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities. It requires an en-
tity to recognize a servicing asset or servicing liability each time it undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset by entering into a 
servicing contract in certain situations. Statement No. 156 requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities to be 
initially measured at fair value, if practicable. An entity is permitted to choose from two measurement methods for each class of separately 
recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities: an amortization method or fair value measurement method. This statement also permits 
a one-time reclassification of available-for-sale securities to trading securities by entities with recognized servicing rights. Separate presenta-
tion of servicing assets and servicing liabilities subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of financial position and additional dis-
closures for all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities are required. This statement is effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after September 15, 2006. Suffolk has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 156, which did not have a material impact on the com-
pany’s financial position or results of operations. 
 
On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB 
Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial 
statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold 
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return. The provisions of FIN 48 are to be applied to all tax positions upon initial adoption of this standard. Only tax positions that meet a 
“more-likely-than-not” recognition threshold at the effective date may be recognized or continue to be recognized upon adoption of FIN 
48. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 are to be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained 
earnings (or other appropriate components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial position) for that fiscal year. The new inter-
pretation also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and tran-
sition. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Suffolk has adopted the provisions of 
FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 were recorded as a credit adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings in the amount of $2,013,000. 
 
Bank tax provisions of New York State Article 32 allows banking corporations to exclude from income 60 percent of the dividends it has 
received from subsidiaries such as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT). In recent years, similar provisions in the tax codes of other 
states have been repealed as those and other states have attempted to generate additional tax revenue. On various occasions over the 
course of a number of years, the tax commissioner of New York State has proposed the elimination of this provision, raising the question 
for New York State banking corporations as to whether this exclusion would remain in effect. In previous years Suffolk has provided for 
the potential retroactive repeal of this provision. New York State Governor Eliot Spitzer has again proposed the prospective elimination of 

The following table details repurchases during 2007: 

Year ending Total shares repurchased Average price per share Aggregate cost
 December 31, 2007 631,562 32.03$           20,227,305$      
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this benefit in his proposed 2008 budget. Going forward, the Company may not realize the benefits of the exclusion from income 60 per-
cent of the dividends received from the REIT, resulting in a higher effective state income tax rate. 
 
In September 2006, FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair value, establishes a frame-
work for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The 
definition of fair value retains the exchange price notion; however, this statement clarifies that the exchange price is the price in an orderly 
transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability in the principal market for the asset or liability. This state-
ment emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement; therefore, a fair value measurement 
should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. This statement clarifies 
that market participant assumptions include assumptions about risk, the risk inherent in a particular valuation technique used to measure 
fair value and/or the risk inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique, as well as the effect of credit risk on the fair value of liabilities. 
This statement also expands disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities in interim and annual periods, focusing 
on the inputs used to measure fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Suffolk is currently 
evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 
In September 2006, FASB issued Statement No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement 
Plans – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” This statement requires an employer that is a business entity and 
sponsors one or more single-employer defined benefit plans to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan in its statement of financial 
position; recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that 
arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to FASB No. 87 or No. 106; measure 
defined benefit plan assets and obligation as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position (with limited ex-
ceptions); and disclose in the notes to financial statements additional information about certain effects of net periodic benefit cost for the 
next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of the gains or losses, prior service costs or credits, and transition asset and obligation. 
Upon initial application of this statement and subsequently, an employer should continue to apply the provisions in Statements 87, 88, and 
106 in measuring plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of its statement of financial position and in determining the amount of 
net periodic benefit cost. An employer with publicly traded equity securities is required to initially recognize the funded status of a defined 
benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. Suffolk 
has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158, which have been recorded in the accompanying consolidated statement of condition and 
disclosures. 
 
On September 13, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, which provides guidance on 
the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality as-
sessment. The guidance is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have a material 
effect on Suffolk’s financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 
In February 2007, FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an 
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”). This statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments 
and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. The statement defines items eligible for the measurement option. A business 
entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent re-
porting date. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Suffolk is currently evaluating the impact of 
SFAS No. 159 on its financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 
In November 2007, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB 109, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through 
Earnings” (“SAB 109”). This bulletin expresses the views of the SEC staff regarding written loan commitments that are accounted for at 
fair value through earnings under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Suffolk is evaluating the impact that the implementa-
tion of SAB 109 will have on its financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 
In December 2007, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB 110, “Share Based Payment” (“SAB 110”). This bulletin expresses the 
views of the SEC staff regarding the use of a simplified method as discussed in SAB 107, in developing an estimate of the expected term of 
share options in accordance with SFAS 123R. This interpretation gives specific examples of when it may be appropriate to use the simpli-
fied method of determining the expected term. Suffolk is evaluating the impact that the implementation of SAB 110 will have on its finan-
cial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 
In December 2007, FASB revised Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations” (SFAS No. 141R). This statement requires an acquirer to 
recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at 
their fair values as of that date. This statement recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a 
bargain purchase. This statement also defines the acquirer as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the business com-
bination and establishes the acquisition date as the date that the acquiree achieves control. Additionally this statement determines what 
information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. 
This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Suffolk is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 141R 
on its financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
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In December 2007, FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment 
of ARB No. 51” (SFAS No. 160). This statement applies to all entities that prepare consolidated financial statements, except not-for-
profit organizations, but will affect only those entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or that 
deconsolidate a subsidiary. This statement amends ARB 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest 
in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after January 1, 2009. Suf-
folk is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 160 on its financial condition, results of operations, and disclosures. 
 

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments, and Estimates 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of Suffolk conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and 
general practices in the financial services industry. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with these accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompany-
ing notes. Actual results in the future could differ from those estimates. 
 
Suffolk considers that the determination of the allowance for loan losses involves a higher degree of judgment and complexity than its 
other significant accounting policies. The allowance for loan losses is calculated to maintain a reserve believed by management to be suffi-
cient to absorb estimated credit losses. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on periodic evaluations of 
the loan portfolio and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates, including, among 
others, the expected probability of default; the amount of loss in the event of default; the expected usage of loan commitments; the 
amounts and timing of cash flows expected in the future from impaired loans and mortgages; and an additional factor for potential loan 
losses based on historical experience. Management also considers economic conditions, uncertainties in estimating losses, and inherent 
risks in the loan portfolio. All of these factors may change significantly in the future. To the extent that actual results differ from manage-
ment’s estimates, additional provisions for loan losses may be required that could reduce earnings in future periods. 
 
Suffolk recognizes deferred-tax assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes occur when income taxes are allocated through time. Some 
items are temporary resulting from differences in the timing of a transaction under generally accepted accounting principles, and for the 
computation of income tax. Examples would include the future tax effects of temporary differences for such items as deferred compensa-
tion and the provision for loan losses. Estimates of deferred tax assets are based upon evidence available to management that future reali-
zation is more likely than not. If management determines that Suffolk may be unable to realize all or part of net deferred tax assets in the 
future, a direct charge to income tax expense may be required to reduce the recorded value of the net deferred tax asset to the amount 
that management expects to realize. 
 

Business Risks and Uncertainties 
 
This annual report contains some statements that look to the future. These may include remarks about Suffolk Bancorp, the banking in-
dustry, and the economy in general. Factors affecting Suffolk Bancorp include particularly, but are not limited to: changes in interest rates; 
increases or decreases in retail and commercial economic activity in Suffolk’s market area; variations in the ability and propensity of con-
sumers and businesses to borrow, repay, or deposit money, or to use other banking and financial services. Further, it could take Suffolk 
longer than anticipated to implement its strategic plans to increase revenue and manage non-interest expense, or it may not be possible to 
implement those plans at all. Finally, new and unanticipated legislation, regulation, or accounting standards may require Suffolk to change 
its practices in ways that materially change the results of operations. Each of these factors may change in ways that management does not 
now foresee. These remarks are based on current plans and expectations. They are subject, however, to a variety of uncertainties that 
could cause future results to vary materially from Suffolk’s historical performance, or from current expectations. 
 

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 

The management of Suffolk Bancorp is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. 
Suffolk Bancorp’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and Board of 
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. 

 
All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be ef-
fective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. 

 
Suffolk Bancorp management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2007. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion (COSO) in Internal Control – Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment and those criteria we have determined that, as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007, the company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective. 
  
Suffolk Bancorp’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued its report on our assessment of the company’s internal con-
trol over financial reporting. This report appears on page 39. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION 

2007 2006
ASSETS
Cash and Due From Banks 56,633,337$                43,575,754$                
Federal Funds Sold 2,700,000                    -                              
Investment Securities:
   Available for Sale, at Fair Value 392,795,741                403,245,550                
   Held to Maturity (Fair Value of $18,199,025 and $15,646,925, respectively)
      Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions 9,055,124                    9,913,123                    
      Federal Reserve Bank Stock 637,849                       637,849                       
      Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 7,817,700                    4,446,200                    
      Corporate Bonds and Other Securities 100,000                       100,000                       
Total Investment Securities 410,406,414                418,342,722                

Total Loans 958,834,890                891,486,417                
Less: Unearned Discounts 35,309                         39,916                         
         Allowance for Loan Losses 7,672,030                    7,550,965                    
Net Loans 951,127,551                883,895,536                

Premises and Equipment, Net 22,143,233                  22,471,073                  
Accrued Interest Receivable 7,359,348                    7,609,003                    
Excess of Cost Over Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired 814,445                       814,445                       
Other Assets 19,396,951                  15,940,597                  
    TOTAL ASSETS 1,470,581,279$           1,392,649,131$           

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Demand Deposits 423,225,286$              426,923,954$              
Saving, N.O.W., and Money Market Deposits 404,456,350                438,190,636                
Time Certificates of $100,000 or more 116,795,006                81,841,699                  
Other Time Deposits 198,898,222                192,118,700                
     Total Deposits 1,143,374,864             1,139,074,989             

Repurchase Agreements 54,820,000                  53,135,000                  
Federal Home Loan Bank Borrowings 143,500,000                67,000,000                  
Dividend Payable on Common Stock 2,120,989                    2,253,304                    
Accrued Interest Payable 2,247,370                    3,372,993                    
Other Liabilities 15,536,685                  19,246,498                  
    TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,361,599,908             1,284,082,784             

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (see Note 11)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock (par value $2.50; 15,000,000 shares authorized, 9,610,730
   and 10,242,292 shares outstanding at December 31, 2007 & 2006, respectively) 33,910,979                  33,910,979                  
Surplus 20,171,885                  19,931,465                  
Retained Earnings 63,939,181                  67,099,115                  
Treasury Stock at Par (3,953,661 shares and 3,322,099 shares, respectively) (9,884,160)                  (8,305,255)                  
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax 843,486                       (4,069,957)                  
    TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 108,981,371                108,566,347                
    TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,470,581,279$           1,392,649,131$           

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

2007 2006 2005
INTEREST INCOME
Federal Funds Sold 140,488$                281,161$                90,810$                  
United States Treasury Securities 397,637                  396,996                  385,115                  
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions (tax exempt) 4,914,370               3,529,614               1,968,450               
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions (taxable) 509,259                  471,291                  271,667                  
Mortgage-Backed Securities 7,672,224               7,981,951               9,596,310               
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 4,575,522               4,879,061               4,896,096               
Corporate Bonds and Other Securities 423,401                  343,288                  147,351                  
Loans 70,448,470             68,325,474             58,316,917             
    Total Interest Income 89,081,371             86,208,836             75,672,716             

INTEREST EXPENSE
Saving, N.O.W., and Money Market Deposits 4,838,463               4,791,785               3,688,631               
Time Certificates of $100,000 or more 5,093,827               2,034,215               542,709                  
Other Time Deposits 8,180,878               6,713,778               4,888,187               
Federal Funds Purchased and Repurchase Agreements 2,876,088               2,954,948               1,251,893               
Interest on Other Borrowings 4,127,929               4,004,768               940,320                  
   Total Interest Expense 25,117,185             20,499,494             11,311,740             

    Net Interest Income 63,964,186             65,709,342             64,360,976             
Provision for Loan Losses 376,718                  965,749                  1,575,000               
  Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 63,587,468             64,743,593             62,785,976             

OTHER INCOME
Service Charges on Deposit Accounts 5,411,969               5,547,675               5,670,036               
Other Service Charges, Commissions & Fees 2,980,797               3,097,420               2,542,067               
Fiduciary Fees 1,408,759               1,252,101               1,182,643               
Other Operating Income 793,289                  774,580                  771,550                  
Net (Loss) Gain on Sale of Securities Available for Sale -                         -                         (21,723)                  
    Total Other Income 10,594,814             10,671,776             10,144,573             

OTHER EXPENSE
Salaries & Employee Benefits 24,407,513             23,896,752             22,222,712             
Net Occupancy Expense 4,069,312               3,950,083               3,763,796               
Equipment Expense 2,207,888               2,112,945               2,055,659               
Outside Services 2,354,862               2,176,004               2,019,188               
FDIC Assessments 145,992                  153,744                  169,045                  
Other Operating Expense 7,206,704               7,685,199               7,222,173               
    Total Other Expense 40,392,271             39,974,727             37,452,573             

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes 33,790,011             35,440,642             35,477,976             
Provision for Income Taxes 11,662,386             12,813,015             13,376,463             
NET INCOME 22,127,625$           22,627,627$           22,101,513$           

Average:     Common Shares Outstanding 9,895,301             10,279,870            10,570,896           
                            Dilutive Stock Options 20,642                    23,639                    29,318                    

Average Total Common Shares and Dilutive Options 9,915,943               10,303,509             10,600,214             

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE Basic 2.24$                      2.20$                      2.09$                      
Diluted 2.23$                      2.20$                      2.09$                      

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the Years ended December 31,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Compre-

Common Retained Treasury Income (Loss) hensive
Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Net of Tax Total Income

Balance, 
 December 31, 2004 33,884,340$ 19,439,444$ 58,195,233$ (6,778,002)$ 1,470,718$   106,211,733$ 
Net Income -               -               22,101,513   -               -               22,101,513     22,101,513$ 
Dividend  - Cash -               -               (8,320,754)   -               -               (8,320,754)     
Purchase of
  Treasury Stock -               -               (13,110,948) (1,089,540)   -               (14,200,488)   
Other -               -               (42,560)        -               -               (42,560)          
Net Change in Unrealized Loss on 
Securities Available for Sale -               -               -               -               (3,748,685)   (3,748,685)     (3,748,685)   
Comprehensive Income 18,352,828$ 
Balance, 

 December 31, 2005 33,884,340$ 19,439,444$ 58,822,484$ (7,867,542)$ (2,277,967)$ 102,000,759$ 
Net Income -               -               22,627,627   -               -               22,627,627     22,627,627$ 
Dividend  - Cash -               -               (9,037,469)   -               -               (9,037,469)     
  Purchase of Treasury Stock -               -               (5,241,270)   (432,477)      -               (5,673,747)     
Stock Appreciation
  Rights and Stock Options Exercised 26,639          260,110        (72,257)        (5,236)          -               209,256          
Stock Option Expense -               231,878        -               -               -               231,878          
Other -               33                 -               -               -               33                   
Net Change in Unrealized Loss on 
  Securities Available for Sale -               -               -               -               939,592        939,592          939,592        
Other Comprehensive Loss on 
  Pension Projected Benefit Obligation -               -               -               -               (2,731,582)   (2,731,582)     
Comprehensive Income 23,567,219$ 
Balance, 

 December 31, 2006 33,910,979$ 19,931,465$ 67,099,115$ (8,305,255)$ (4,069,957)$ 108,566,347$ 
Cumulative Effect  of
    Adoption of FIN 48 -               -               2,012,657     -               -               2,012,657       
Balance, 33,910,979$ 19,931,465$ 69,111,772$ (8,305,255)$ (4,069,957)$ 110,579,004$ 

 January 1, 2007 as revised
Net Income -               -               22,127,625   -               -               22,127,625     22,127,625$ 
Dividend  - Cash -               -               (8,651,816)   -               -               (8,651,816)     
Purchase of
  Treasury Stock -               -               (18,648,400) (1,578,905)   -               (20,227,305)   
Stock Option Expense -               240,420        -               -               -               240,420          
Net Change in Unrealized Gain on
  Securities Available for Sale -               -               -               -               3,011,237     3,011,237       3,011,237     
Other Comprehensive Gain on 
  Pension Projected Benefit  Obligation -               -               -               -               1,902,206     1,902,206       1,902,206     
Comprehensive Income 27,041,068$ 
Balance, 

 December 31, 2007 33,910,979$ 20,171,885$ 63,939,181$ (9,884,160)$ 843,486$      108,981,371$ 

  See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

2007 2006 2005
NET INCOME 22,127,625$        22,627,627$        22,101,513$        

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET CASH

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
      Provision for Loan Losses 376,718               965,749               1,575,000            
      Depreciation and Amortization 2,312,684            2,200,182            2,109,645            
      Stock Based Compensation 240,420               231,878               -                       
      Accretion of Discounts (136,959)              (239,212)              (324,834)              
      Amortization of Premiums 768,006               2,358,689            3,676,946            
      Decrease (Increase) in Accrued Interest Receivable 249,655               (861,718)              (943,384)              
      (Increase) Decrease in Other Assets (4,283,583)           (226,780)              2,304,635            
      Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Interest Payable (1,125,623)           1,650,585            1,000,836            
      (Decrease) Increase in Income Taxes Payable (4,632,729)           3,410,675            (479,966)              
      Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities 3,572,497            (1,974,959)           2,507,642            
      Net  Loss on Sale of Securities -                       -                       21,723                 
        Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 19,468,711          30,142,716          33,549,756          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
      Principal Payments on Investment Securities 28,170,242          37,683,350          61,231,605          
      Proceeds from Sale of Investment Securities; Available for Sale -                       -                       8,422,802            
      Maturities of Investment Securities; Available for Sale 20,000,000          6,500,000            -                       
      Purchases of Investment Securities; Available for Sale (33,249,252)         (47,919,748)         (51,743,399)         
      Maturities of Investment Securities; Held to Maturity 2,919,000            4,775,400            8,925,200            
      Purchases of Investment Securities; Held to Maturity (5,430,981)           (2,597,200)           (11,736,400)         
      Loan Disbursements and Repayments, Net (67,608,733)         10,347,602          (79,564,058)         
      Purchases of Premises and Equipment, Net (1,984,843)           (1,879,607)           (1,896,340)           
        Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (57,184,567)         6,909,797            (66,360,590)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
      Net Increase (Decrease) in Deposit Accounts 4,299,875            (19,631,521)         (38,885,805)         
      Short-Term Borrowings and Repayments, Net 78,185,000          (7,840,000)           102,675,000        
      Dividends Paid to Shareholders (8,784,131)           (8,867,708)           (8,300,804)           
      Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights Exercised -                       7                          -                       
      Treasury Shares Acquired (20,227,305)         (5,673,747)           (14,200,488)         
      Director Stock Gain Divestiture -                       5,803                   -                       
         Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities 53,473,439          (42,007,166)         41,287,903          

        Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and  Cash Equivalents 15,757,583          (4,954,653)           8,477,069            

           Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 43,575,754          48,530,407          40,053,338          
           Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year 59,333,337$        43,575,754$        48,530,407$        
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
      Cash Received During the Year for Interest 89,331,026$        85,347,118$        74,729,332$        
      Cash Paid During the Year for:
        Interest 26,242,808$        18,848,909$        10,310,904$        
        Income Taxes 14,767,686          8,369,541            14,128,373          
          Total Cash Paid During Year for Interest & Income Taxes 41,010,494$        27,218,450$        24,439,277$        
Non-Cash Investing and Financing: 
(Increase) Decrease in Market Value of Investments (5,103,793)           (1,592,530)           6,353,704            
(Decrease) Increase in Deferred Tax Asset Related to
      Market Value of Investments Available for Sale (2,092,555)           (652,937)              2,605,019            
Dividends Declared But Not Paid 2,120,989            2,253,304            2,081,344            
Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights Exercised for Stock -                       209,256               -                       

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the Years ended December 31,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  
The accounting and reporting policies of Suffolk Bancorp and its 
subsidiary conform to generally accepted accounting principles 
and general practices within the banking industry. The following 
footnotes describe the most significant of these policies. 
  
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management 
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated 
statements of condition. The same is true of revenues and ex-
penses reported for the period. Actual results could differ signifi-
cantly from those estimates. 
  
(A) Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of Suffolk and its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Suffolk County National Bank (the “Bank”). In 1998, the Bank 
formed a Real Estate Investment Trust named Suffolk Green-
way, Inc. In 2004, the Bank formed an insurance agency named 
SCNB Financial Services, Inc. All inter-company transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 
  
(B) Investment Securities — Suffolk reports debt securities 
and mortgage-backed securities in one of the following catego-
ries: (i) “held to maturity” (management has the intent and ability 
to hold to maturity), which are to be reported at amortized cost; 
(ii) “trading” (held for current resale), which are to be reported 
at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in earn-
ings; and (iii) “available for sale” (all other debt securities and 
mortgage-backed securities), which are to be reported at fair 
value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings 
and reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. 
Accordingly, Suffolk classified all of its holdings of debt securi-
ties and mortgage-backed securities as either “held to maturity” 
or “available for sale.” At the time a security is purchased, a de-
termination is made as to the appropriate classification.  
  
Premiums and discounts on debt and mortgage-backed securities 
are amortized as expense and accreted as income over the esti-
mated life of the respective security using a method that approxi-
mates the level-yield method. Gains and losses on the sales of 
investment securities are recognized upon realization, using the 
specific identification method and shown separately in the con-
solidated statements of income.  
 
 In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position 
(“FSP”) SFAS 115-1 and 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than 
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Invest-
ments.” This FSP nullifies certain requirements of EITF-03-1 on 
this topic and provides additional guidance on when an invest-
ment in a debt or equity security should be considered impaired 
and when that impairment should be considered other-than-
temporary and recognized as a loss in earnings. Specifically, the 
guidance clarifies that an investor should recognize an impair-
ment loss no later than when the impairment is deemed other-
than-temporary, even if a decision to sell has not been made. 
The FSP also required certain disclosures about unrealized losses 
that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impair-
ments. The amount of any other-than-temporary impairment 

that needs to be recognized will continue to be dependent on 
market conditions, the occurrence of certain events or changes 
in circumstances relative to an investee and an entity’s intent and 
ability to hold the impaired investment at the time of the valua-
tion. FSP SFAS 115-1 and 124-1 was effective for reporting peri-
ods beginning after December 15, 2005. Adoption of the FSP 
did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial posi-
tion or results of operations. 
 
(C) Loans and Loan Interest Income Recognition — Loans 
are stated at the principal amount outstanding. Interest on loans 
not made on a discounted basis is credited to income, based 
upon the principal amount outstanding during the period. Un-
earned discounts on installment loans are credited to income 
using methods that result in a level yield. Recognition of interest 
income is discontinued when reasonable doubt exists as to 
whether interest due can be collected. Loans generally no longer 
accrue interest when 90 days past due. When a loan is placed on 
non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued in the current 
year, but not collected, is reversed against current-year interest 
income. Any interest accrued in prior years is charged against the 
allowance for loan losses. Loans and leases start accruing interest 
again when they become current as to principal and interest, and 
when, in the opinion of management, the loans can be collected 
in full. 
  
(D) Allowance for Loan Losses — The balance of the allow-
ance for loan losses is determined by management’s estimate of 
the amount of financial risk in the loan portfolio and the likeli-
hood of loss. The analysis also considers the Bank’s loan loss 
experience and may be adjusted in the future depending on eco-
nomic conditions. Additions to the allowance are made by 
charges to expense, and actual losses, net of recoveries, are 
charged to the allowance. Regulatory examiners may require the 
Bank to add to the allowance based upon their judgment of in-
formation available to them at the time of their examination. 
  
In accordance with SFAS No. 114, titled “Accounting by Credi-
tors for Impairment of a Loan,” as amended by Statement No. 
118, titled “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of Loan-
Income Recognition and Disclosures,” an allowance is main-
tained for impaired loans to reflect the difference, if any, be-
tween the principal balance of the loan and the present value of 
projected cash flows, observable fair value, or collateral value. 
SFAS No. 114 defines an impaired loan as a loan for which it is 
probable that the lender will not collect all amounts due under 
the contractual terms of the loan. 
 
The Bank accounts for its transfers and servicing financial assets 
in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers 
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Li-
abilities.” SFAS No. 140 revises the standards for accounting for 
the securitizations and other transfers of financial assets and 
collateral. Transfers of financial assets for which the Bank has 
surrendered control of the financial assets are accounted for as 
sales to the extent that consideration other than beneficial inter-
ests in the transferred assets is received in exchange. Retained 
interests in a sale or securitization of financial assets are meas-
ured at the date of transfer by allocating the previous carrying 
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amount between the assets transferred and based on their rela-
tive estimated fair values. The fair values of retained servicing 
rights and any other retained interests are determined based on 
the present value of expected future cash flows associated with 
those interests and by reference to market prices for similar as-
sets. There were no transfers of financial assets to related or 
affiliated parties. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank’s 
servicing loan portfolio approximated $98,524,000, and 
$102,661,000, respectively. The estimated fair value of mortgage 
servicing rights was $1,248,000 and $1,262,000 as of December 
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
The Bank accounts for letters of credit in accordance with FASB 
Interpretation 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including Indirect 
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” Suffolk has financial 
and performance letters of credit. Financial letters of credit re-
quire the Bank to make payment if the customer’s financial con-
dition deteriorates, as defined in the agreements. Performance 
letters of credit require the Bank to make payments if the cus-
tomer fails to perform certain nonfinancial contractual obliga-
tions. The maximum potential undiscounted amount of the fu-
ture payments of these letters of credit as of December 31, 2007 
is $21,094,000 and they expire as follows: 

quired, as well as the cost of maintaining and operating these 
foreclosed properties, are charged to expense. Additional write-
downs are recorded in a valuation reserve account that is main-
tained asset by asset. 
  
(G) Excess of Cost Over Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired 
and Other Intangible Assets — Through December 31, 2001, 
the excess of cost over fair value of net assets acquired 
(goodwill) was amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 
ten years. Effective with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, 
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002, the 
Bank ceased amortizing goodwill and, instead, tests goodwill for 
impairment on a periodic basis. 
 
(H) Income Taxes — Suffolk uses an asset and liability ap-
proach to accounting for income taxes. The asset and liability 
approach requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is 
more likely than not that a future benefit will be realized. It is 
management’s position that no valuation allowance is necessary 
against any of Suffolk’s deferred tax assets. 
 
As of January 1, 2007, Suffolk adopted FASB Interpretation No. 
48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an inter-
pretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which prescribes the 
recognition and measurement criteria related to tax positions 
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The cumulative 
effect of applying the provisions of FIN 48 were recorded as a 
credit adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in 
the amount of $2,013,000. 
 
(I) Summary of Retirement Benefits Accounting — Suf-
folk’s retirement plan is noncontributory and covers substantially 
all eligible employees. The plan conforms to the provisions of 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as 
amended and the Pension Protection Act of 2006, which re-
quires certain funding rules for defined benefit plans. Suffolk’s 
policy is to accrue for all pension costs and to fund the maxi-
mum amount allowable for tax purposes. Actuarial gains and 
losses that arise from changes in assumptions concerning future 
events are amortized over a period that reflects the long-term 
nature of pension expense used in estimating pension costs. 
 
On December 31, 2006, Suffolk adopted FASB Statement No. 
158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and 
Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of FASB State-
ments No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R).” This statement requires an 
employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of 
a defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its 
statement of financial position and to recognize changes in the 
funded status of the plan in the year in which the changes occur 
through comprehensive income. At December 31, 2006, Suf-
folk’s projected benefit obligation exceeded the fair value of plan 
assets at year end by $637,000. Accordingly, a credit of 
$4,620,000 was recorded to reduce the prepaid pension cost of 
$3,983,000 and to establish a liability to reflect the unfunded 
minimum obligation. Additionally, a deferred tax asset adjust-
ment was recorded in the amount of $1,888,000 to record the 

Amounts due under these letters of credit would be reduced by 
any proceeds that Suffolk would be able to obtain in liquidating 
the collateral for the loans, which varies depending on the cus-
tomer. The valuation of the allowance for contingent liabilities 
includes a provision of $32,000 for losses based on the letters 
of credit outstanding on December 31, 2007. 
 
(E) Premises and Equipment — Premises and equipment 
are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortiza-
tion. Depreciation is calculated by the declining-balance or 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the as-
sets. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-
line method over the term of the lease or the estimated life of 
the asset, whichever is shorter. 
 
The Bank measures impairment of long-lived assets in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or 
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 retains the 
existing requirements to recognize and measure the impairment 
of long-lived assets to be held and used or to be disposed of by 
sale. There was no impairment of long-lived assets as of De-
cember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
  
(F) Other Real Estate Owned — Property acquired through 
foreclosure (other real estate owned or “OREO”), is stated at 
the lower of cost or fair value less selling costs. Credit losses 
arising at the time of the acquisition of property are charged 
against the allowance for loan losses. Any additional write-
downs to the carrying value of these assets that may be re-

2008 19,186,000$  
2009 1,488,000     
2010 245,000       
2011 and thereafter 175,000       

21,094,000$  
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Suffolk accrues for post retirement benefits other than pensions 
by accruing the cost of providing those benefits to an employee 
during the years that the employee serves. 
 
(J) Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the con-
solidated statement of cash flows, cash and due from banks, and 
federal funds sold are considered to be cash equivalents. Gener-
ally, federal funds are sold for one-day periods.  
 
(K) Stock-Based Compensation — At December 31, 2007, 
the Bank had one stock-based employee compensation plan, 
which is more fully described in Note 8. Prior to January 1, 2006, 
Suffolk accounted for that plan under the recognition and meas-
urement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for 
Stock Issued to Employees,” (“APB No. 25”) and related inter-
pretations. No stock-based employee compensation costs were 
reflected in net income, as all options granted under the plan had 
an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying 
common stock on the date of grant. On January 1, 2006 Suffolk 
adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 
123( R )”). This statement supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS 123(R) 
requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants 
of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial 
statements based on their fair values. This statement was 
adopted using the modified prospective method of application, 
which requires the recognition of compensation expense on a 
prospective basis. Accordingly, prior periods have not been re-
stated. This statement also revised SFAS No. 123, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation,” which superseded APB No. 25. 
SFAS 123 required the disclosure of the effect on net income 
and earnings-per-share using fair value recognition provisions. 

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and 
earnings-per-share if the Bank had applied the recognition pro-
visions of SFAS 123 to stock-based compensation: (in thou-
sands, except per-share amounts)  

Unfunded 

Pension 
Obligation 

Liability 
Prepaid Pension 

Cost
Deferred Tax 

Asset (Liability)

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)

Balance 12/31/06 637$                  -$                  260$                  (2,732)$              
Employer contribution 1,542                 (626)                  
Periodic pension cost (1,111)                451                   
Overfunded Projected Benefit Obligation (637)                  2,668                 (1,344)                1,903                 
Balance 12/31/07 -$                  3,099$               (1,259)$              (829)$                 

tax effect of the loss. The remaining loss of $2,732,000, net of 
tax, was recorded in Other Comprehensive Losses in the ac-
companying Statement of Condition. The adoption of State-
ment 158 did not affect the Company’s statement of income 
for the year ended December 31, 2006, or any prior periods. 
Application of the Statement will not change the calculation of 
net income in future periods, but will affect the calculation of 
other comprehensive income. Statement 158 also requires an 
employer to use the same date for the measurement of plan 
assets as for the statement of condition, and provides for either 

2005

Net Income: As Reported 22,102$       
Stock-Based Compensation Expense 70              

Pro Forma 22,032        
Basic EPS: As Reported 2.09            

Pro Forma 2.08            
Diluted EPS: As Reported 2.09            

Pro Forma 2.08            

During 2007 and 2006, $143,000 and $137,000 of compensa-
tion expense, net of a tax benefit of $97,000 and $95,000 re-
spectively, was recorded for stock-based compensation. As of 
December 31, 2007, there was $5,000 of total unrecognized 
compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to non-
vested options under the stock-based employee compensation 
plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted 
average period of one month. 
 
(L) Treasury Stock — The balance of treasury stock is com-
puted at par value. The excess cost over par is subtracted from 
undivided profits.  
 
(M) Earnings-per-share — Basic earnings-per-share is com-
puted by dividing net income by the number of weighted-
average shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings-
per-share reflect the dilution that would occur if stock options 
were exercised in return for common stock that would then 
share in Suffolk’s earnings. It is computed by dividing net in-
come by the sum of the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding and the weighted-average number of stock 
options exercisable during the period. Suffolk has no other 

of two methods to make the transition. Suffolk has chosen 
to re-measure the obligations of the plan as of the beginning 
of fiscal year 2008. Under this method, 2008 net periodic 
pension expense will be determined using the market value 
of plan assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2008. Accord-
ingly, Suffolk expects to record a decrease to prepaid pen-
sion cost of $1,297,000, and a debit adjustment to opening 
retained earnings in the amount of $200,000 and a debit ad-
justment to accumulated other comprehensive loss in the 
amount of $1,097,000. 

The following table summarizes pension account activity for 2007: (in thousands) 
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(O) Segment Reporting — SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures 
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” 
requires that public companies report certain information about 
operating segments. It also requires that public companies report 

The following table summarizes comprehensive income activity relating to unrealized holding gains and losses on securities available for 
sale: (in thousands) 

Available for 
Sale Securities - 

Fair Market 
Value 

Available for 
Sale Securities - 

Book Value 

Unrealized Gain 
(Loss) on 

Available for 
Sale 

Investments
Deferred Tax 

Asset (Liability)

Balance 12/31/06 403,246$            405,514$            (1,338)$              930$                  
Purchases of Investments 33,249               33,249               -                    -                    
Maturity of Investments (20,000)              (20,000)              -                    -                    
Principal Payments on Investments (28,171)              (28,171)              -                    -                    
Amortization of Premiums (768)                  (768)                  -                    -                    
Accretion of Discounts 136                   136                   -                    -                    
Increase in Market Value of Investments 5,104                 -                    3,011                 (2,092)                
Balance 12/31/07 392,796$            389,960$            1,673$               (1,162)$              

The following table summarizes comprehensive income activity relating to changes in funded status of the pension plan: (in thousands) 

Unfunded 
Pension 

Obligation 
Liability 

Prepaid Pension 
Cost

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)

Deferred Tax 
Asset (Liability)

Balance 12/31/06 637$                  -$                  (2,732)$              260$                  
Employer contribution 1,542                 (626)                  
Periodic pension cost (1,111)                451                   
Overfunded Projected Benefit Obligation (637)                  2,668                 1,903                 (1,344)                
Balance 12/31/07 -$                  3,099$               (829)$                 (1,259)$              

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)

Balance 12/31/06 (4,070)$              
Change in Market Value of Investments 3,011                 
Overfunded Projected Benefit Obligation 1,903                 
Balance 12/31/07 844                   

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income are sum-
marized below: (in thousands) 

securities that could be converted into common stock, nor any 
contracts that would result in the issuance of common stock. 
 
(N) Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income 
includes net income and all other changes in equity during a 
period except those resulting from investments by owners and 
distributions to owners. Other comprehensive income includes 
revenues, expenses, gains, and losses that under generally ac-

certain information about their products and services, the geo-
graphic areas in which they operate, and their major customers. 
Suffolk is a regional bank, which offers a wide array of prod-
ucts and services to its customers. Pursuant to its banking strat-
egy, emphasis is placed on building relationships with its cus-
tomers, as opposed to building specific lines of business. As a 
result, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, Suffolk is not organ-
ized around discernible lines of business and prefers to work as 
an integrated unit to customize solutions for its customers, 
with business line emphasis and product offerings changing 
over time as needs and demands change. Thus, all necessary 
requirements of SFAS No. 131 have been met by Suffolk as of 
December 31, 2007. 
 
(P) Reclassification of Prior Year Consolidated Financial 
Statements — Certain reclassifications have been made to the 
prior year’s consolidated financial statements that conform 
with the current year’s presentation. 

cepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive 
income but excluded from net income. Comprehensive income 
and accumulated other comprehensive income are reported net 
of related income taxes. Accumulated other comprehensive 
income for the Bank consists of unrealized holding gains or 
losses on securities available for sale, and gains or losses on the 
unfunded projected benefit obligation of the pension plan. 



 29 

 

Note 2 — Investment Securities 
 
The amortized cost, estimated fair values, and gross unrealized gains and losses of Suffolk’s investment securities available for sale and held 
to maturity at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were: (in thousands) 

The amortized cost, maturities, and approximate fair value of Suffolk’s investment securities at December 31, 2007 are as follows:  
(in thousands) 

As a member of the Federal Reserve system, the Bank owns 
Federal Reserve Bank stock with a book value of $638,000. The 
stock has no maturity and there is no public market for the in-
vestment.  
 
As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, the 
bank owns Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock with a 
book value of $7,818,000. The stock has no maturity and there is 
no public market for the investment. 

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, investment securities carried at 
$286,421,000 and $266,492,000 respectively, were pledged to 
secure trust deposits and public funds on deposit. The following 
table presents detail concerning realized securities gains and 
losses during the years indicated: (in thousands) 

Estimated Gross Gross Estimated Gross Gross
Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Value Gains Losses Cost Value Gains Losses
Available for sale:
  U.S. Treasury securities 9,547$      9,838$      291$        -$         9,559$      9,423$      -$         (136)$       
  U.S. government agency debt 105,100    105,066    219          (253)         125,276    122,883    176          (2,569)       
  Collateralized mortgage obligations agency issue 128,442    129,562    1,302        (182)         156,528    156,239    637          (926)         
  Mortgage-backed securities 824          859          35            -           1,039        1,072        33            -           
  Obligations of states and political subdivisions 146,047    147,471    1,595        (171)         113,112    113,629    931          (414)         
Balance at end of year 389,960    392,796    3,442        (606)         405,514    403,246    1,777        (4,045)       
Held to maturity: 
  Obligations of states and 
    political subdivisions 9,055        9,643        603          (15)           9,913        10,463      588          (38)           
Other securities 8,556        8,556        -           -           5,184        5,184        -           -           
Balance at end of year 17,611      18,199      603          (15)           15,097      15,647      588          (38)           
Total investment securities 407,571$   410,995$   4,045$      (621)$       420,611$   418,893$   2,365$      (4,083)$     

----------------------------2007---------------------------- 2006

Total Total
Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

(1) Maturity (in years) Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Within 1 -$       -$       46,982$   46,940$    -$        -$       2,326$    2,333$    -$       -$       49,308$   49,273$       
After 1 but within 5 9,547     9,838     58,118     58,126     3,514       3,521      1,501     1,528     -        -        72,680     73,013        
After 5 but within 10 -        -        -          -          91,423     92,348    5,018     5,579     -        -        96,441     97,927        
After 10 -        -        -          -          51,110     51,602    210        203        -        -        51,320     51,805        
Other Securities -        -        -          -          -          -         -        -        8,556     8,556     8,556      8,556          
Subtotal 9,547$    9,838$    105,100$  105,066$  146,047$  147,471$ 9,055$    9,643$    8,556$    8,556$    278,305$ 280,574$     
Collateralized mortgage obligations 128,442   129,562       
Mortgage-backed securities 824         859            
Total 407,571$ 410,995$     
(1) Maturities shown are stated maturities. Securities backed by mortgages are expected to have substantial periodic prepayments resulting in weighted  
     average lives considerably less than what would be surmised from the table above.

--------------------------Available for Sale------------------------- -------------Held to Maturity-------------

Securities
U.S. Treasury  

U.S.
Govt. Agency 

Debt

Obligations of
States & Political Other

SecuritiesSubdivisions

Obligations of
States & Political

Subdivisions

2007 2006 2005
Gross realized gains -$      -$      -$      

Gross realized losses -       -       22        
Net (losses) gains -$      -$      (22)$      
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Note 3 — Loans 
 
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, loans included the following: 
(in thousands) 

Restructured loans, loans not accruing interest, and loans con-
tractually past due 90 days or more with regard to payment of 
principal and/or interest amounted to $1,671,000 and $892,000 
at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest on loans 
that have been restructured or are no longer accruing interest 
would have amounted to $131,000 during 2007, $68,000 during 
2006, and $335,000 during 2005, under contractual terms of 
those loans. Interest income recognized on restructured and 
non-accrual loans was immaterial for the years 2007, 2006, and 
2005. 
 
Suffolk makes loans to its directors and executives, as well as to 
other related parties in the ordinary course of its business. Loans 
made to directors and executives, either directly or indirectly, 
which exceed $60,000 in aggregate for any one director or execu-
tive, totaled $13,661,000 and $12,488,000 at December 31, 2007 
and 2006, respectively. Unused portions of lines of credit to di-
rectors and executives, directly or indirectly, totaled $12,005,000 
and $12,355,000. New loans totaling $32,633,000 were granted 
and payments of $31,460,000 were received during 2007. 

The table below indicates the length of time individual securities, both held-to-maturity and available-for-sale, have been held in a con-
tinuous unrealized loss position at the date indicated: (in thousands) 

Management has considered factors regarding other-than-temporarily impaired securities and determined that there are no impaired secu-
rities as of December 31, 2007. 

Note 4 — Allowance for Loan Losses 
 
An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses fol-
lows: (in thousands) 

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, the Bank’s re-
corded investment in impaired loans and the related valuation 
allowance calculated under SFAS No. 114 and SFAS No. 118 
are as follows: (in thousands) 

This valuation allowance is included in the allowance for loan 
losses on the statements of condition. The average investment 
in impaired loans in 2007 was $816,000, compared to 
$1,999,000 in 2006.  

 2007 2006
Commercial, financial, and agricultural 204,242$    182,840$    
Commercial real estate 318,601      292,458      
Real estate construction loans 83,715        80,687        
Residential mortgages (1st and 2nd liens) 184,743      155,107      
Home equity loans 67,081        76,361        
Consumer loans 99,349        103,142      
Other loans 1,104         892            

958,835      891,487      
Unearned discounts (35)            (40)            
Allowance for loan losses (7,672)        (7,551)        
Balance at end of year 951,128$    883,896$    

2007 2006
Recorded investment 1,435$   576$     
Valuation allowance 700       240       

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year 7,551$   9,828$   8,210$   
Provision for loan losses 377       966       1,575    
Reclass to Allowance for 
Contingent Liabilities (390)      -       -       
Loans charged-off (181)      (3,757)   (608)      
Recoveries on loans 315       514       651       
Balance at end of year 7,672$   7,551$   9,828$   

As of December 31, 2007 Number of
Type of securities Securities Fair value Unrealized losses Fair value Unrealized losses Fair value Unrealized losses
U.S. government agency securities 3 29,815$   160$           43,093$   93$            72,908$   253$           
U.S. Treasury securities -            -         -             -         -             -         -             
Municipal securities 133 38          -             37,869     186            37,907     186            
Collateralized mortgage obligations 8 -         -             36,973     182            36,973     182            
Total 144 29,853$   160$           117,935$ 461$           147,788$ 621$           

As of December 31, 2006 Number of
Type of securities Securities Fair value Unrealized losses Fair value Unrealized losses Fair value Unrealized losses
U.S. government agency securities 5 19,892$   222$           85,781$   2,346$        105,673$ 2,569$        
U.S. Treasury securities 2 -         -             9,423      136            9,423      136            
Municipal securities 167 2,922      1                69,706     451            72,627     452            
Collateralized mortgage obligations 13 -         -             69,915     926            69,915     926            
Total 187 22,814$   223$           234,825$ 3,859$        257,639$ 4,083$        

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Total12 months or longerLess than 12 months
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Note 5 — Premises and Equipment 
  
The following table details premises and equipment:  
(in thousands) 

Note 8 — Stockholders’ Equity 
  
Suffolk has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Stockholders can 
reinvest dividends in common stock of Suffolk at a 3 percent 
discount from market value on newly issued shares. Shareholders 
may also make additional cash purchases. No shares were issued 
in 2007, 2006, or 2005. 
  
At December 31, 2007, Suffolk has a Stock Option Plan (“the 
Plan”) under which 1,200,000 shares of Suffolk’s common stock 
were originally reserved for issuance to key employees, and of 
which 1,037,500 remained available at that date. Options are 
awarded by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors. 
The Plan provides that the option price shall not be less than the 
fair value of the common stock on the date the option is 
granted. All options are exercisable for a period of ten years or 
less. The Plan provides for but does not require the grant of 
stock appreciation rights that the holder may exercise instead of 
the underlying option. When the stock appreciation right is exer-
cised, the underlying option is canceled. The optionee receives 
shares of common stock with a fair market value equal to the 
excess of the fair value of the shares subject to the option at the 
time of exercise (or the portion thereof so exercised) over the 
aggregate option price of the shares set forth in the option agree-
ment. The exercise of stock appreciation rights is treated as the 
exercise of the underlying option. Options vest after one year 
and expire after ten years. Compensation expense related to 
stock appreciation rights amounted to approximately $46,000,, 
$93,000, and $31,000, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 
2006, and 2005, respectively. The following table presents the 
options granted, exercised, or expired during each of the past 
three years: 

The following table presents additional information: 

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations 
amounted to $2,313,000, $2,200,000, and $2,110,000 during 
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.  
 
Note 6 — Deposits 
 
The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of 
time deposits during the years after 2007: (in thousands) 

Note 7 — Short-Term Borrowings 
  
Presented below is information concerning short-term interest-
bearing liabilities — principally Federal Home Loan Bank Bor-
rowings, Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase, and 
Federal Funds Purchased — with maturities of less than one 
year, and their related weighted-average interest rates for the 
years 2007 and 2006: (dollars in thousands) 

For purposes of borrowing, Suffolk has no assets pledged as 
collateral to the Federal Reserve Bank as of December 31, 
2007. Assets pledged as collateral to the Federal Home Loan 
Bank as of December 31, 2007 totaled $184,855,000. 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 2007 2006

Land Indefinite 3,326$     3,326$     
Premises 30 - 40 years 19,010     18,719     
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3 - 7 years 24,652     23,710     
Leasehold improvements 1 - 15 years 3,165       2,683       

50,153     48,438     
Accumulated depreciation
  and amortization (28,010)    (25,967)    
Balance at end of year 22,143$    22,471$    

Year during which Time Deposits Other Time
Time Deposit Matures > $100,000 Deposits

2008 108,696$           169,538$           
2009 306                   9,708                
2010 733                   6,814                
2011 6,021                4,295                
2012 1,039                8,543                

Total 116,795$           198,898$           

December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Daily average outstanding 133,859$   137,511$   63,169$    
Total interest cost 7,004        6,960        2,192        
Average interest rate paid 5.23         % 5.06         % 3.47         %
Maximum amount outstanding
   at any month-end 198,320$   192,675$   127,975$   
December 31, balance 198,320    120,135    127,975    
Weighted-average interest rate
    on balances outstanding 4.31         % 5.35         % 4.30         %

Shares    Wtd. Avg. Exercise
Balance at December 31, 2004 87,500     21.23$     
Options granted 23,000     31.25       
Options exercised -          -          
Options expired or terminated -          -          
Balance at December 31, 2005 110,500   23.32$     
Options granted 25,000     34.95       
Options exercised (14,000)    14.38       
Options expired or terminated (4,000)      33.11       
Balance at December 31, 2006 117,500   26.52$     
Options granted 24,000     32.90       
Options exercised -          -          
Options expired or terminated -          -          
Balance at December 31, 2007 141,500   27.61$     

At, or during,
year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Average remaining
contractual life in years 5.95        6.31        6.28        

Exercisable options (vested) 117,500   93,500     87,500     
Weighted average fair value of
options (Black-Scholes model)

at date of grant: 10.07$     9.44$       8.11$       
Black-Scholes Assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 4.89% 4.36% 4.19%
Expected dividend yield 2.43% 2.36% 2.24%

Expected life in years 10 10 10
Expected volatility 25.20% 22.00% 20.50%
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The following table details contractual weighted-averages lives of 
outstanding options at various prices: 

The effects of temporary differences between tax and financial 
accounting that create significant deferred-tax assets and liabili-
ties at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the recognition of in-
come and expense for purposes of tax and financial reporting, 
that resulted in a net increase to Suffolk’s net deferred tax asset 
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 are pre-
sented below: (in thousands) 

All dividends must conform to applicable statutory require-
ments. Under 12 USC 56-9, a national bank may not pay a divi-
dend on its common stock if the dividend would exceed net 
undivided profits then on hand. Further, under 12 USC 60, a 
national bank must obtain prior approval from the Office of 
the Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”) to pay dividends on 
either common or preferred stock that would exceed the 
bank’s net profits for the current year combined with retained 
net profits (net profits minus dividends paid during that pe-
riod) from the prior two years. At December 31, 2007, approxi-
mately $30,540,000 was available for dividends from the Bank 
to Suffolk Bancorp without prior approval of the OCC. 
 
Note 9 — Income Taxes 
  
The following table presents the provision for income taxes in 
the consolidated statements of income which is comprised of 
the following: (in thousands) 

The total current tax expense was different from the amounts 
computed by applying the federal income tax rate because of 
the following: 

As discussed in note 1 (H), Suffolk adopted the provisions of 
FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. Suffolk had unrecognized tax 
benefits including interest of approximately $202,000 as of 
January 1, 2007 and approximately $96,000 as of December 31, 
2007. Changes in unrecognized tax benefits consist of the fol-
lowing: (in thousands) 

from 13.13       31.25       34.39       
to 15.50       31.83       34.95       

Outstanding stock options 42,000     60,500     39,000     
Weighted-average remaining life 2.60        7.41        7.30        
Weighted-average exercise price 14.60$     32.04$     34.73$     

Exercisable stock options 42,000     36,500     39,000     
Weighted-average remaining life 2.60        6.30        7.30        
Weighted-average exercise price 14.60$     31.48$     34.73$     

At all prices Options price life (yrs)
Total outstanding 141,500   27.61$     5.95        
Total exerciseable 117,500   26.52$     5.31        

By range of exercise prices

Weighted-average

2007 2006 2005
Current: Federal 10,382$  10,071$  11,782$  

State 1,473     1,746      2,191      
11,855    11,817    13,973    

Deferred:  Federal (204)       776        (456)       
                 State 11         220        (141)       

(193)       996        (597)       
Total 11,662$  12,813$  13,376$  

2007 2006 2005
Federal income tax expense
    at statutory rates 35% 35% 35%
Tax-exempt interest (5%) (3%) (2%)
State income taxes net of
    federal benefit 3% 3% 4%
Other 1% 1% 1%
Total 34% 36% 38%

Suffolk recognizes interest and penalties accrued relating to 
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The total 
amount of accrued interest relating to uncertain tax positions is 
$29,000 as of December 31, 2007. Suffolk files income tax re-
turns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in New York state. 
Federal returns are subject to audits by tax authorities begin-
ning with the 2003 tax year. New York state returns are subject 
to audits by tax authorities beginning with the 2004 tax year. It 
is not anticipated that the unrecognized tax benefits will signifi-
cantly change over the next twelve months. 
 
Note 10 — Employee Benefits 
  
(A) Retirement Plan — Suffolk has a noncontributory de-
fined benefit pension plan available to all full-time employees 
who are at least 21 years old and have completed at least one 

 Total Federal State

Balance 1/1/07 202$       125$       77$         
Additions from current year tax positions -         -         -         
Additions from prior year tax positions 10          7            3            
Reductions for prior year tax positions (70)         (51)         (19)         
Settlements (46)         -         (46)         
Balance 12/31/07 96$         81$         15$         

2007 2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
   Provision for possible
      loan losses 3,116$    3,086$    4,017$    
   Post retirement benefits 1,018     1,010      993        
   Deferred compensation 1,930     1,837      1,765      
   Securities available for sale -        930        1,583      
   Unfunded pension obligation -        260        -         
   Other 580        352        365        
Total deferred tax assets
   before valuation allowance 6,644     7,475      8,723      
      Valuation allowance -        -         -         
Total deferred tax assets
   net of valuation allowance 6,644     7,475      8,723      
Deferred tax liabilities:
    Prepaid pension cost 1,259     -         1,584      
    Securities available for sale 1,162     -         -         
    Other 669        677        580        
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,090     677        2,164      
Net deferred tax asset 3,554$    6,798$    6,559$    
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2007 2006
Benefit obligation at start of year 25,793,210$  25,187,518$  
Service cost 1,381,723     1,401,348     
Interest cost 1,482,086     1,359,983     
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,267,669)    (993,049)       
Benefits paid (1,260,327)    (1,162,590)    
Benefit obligation at end of year 26,129,023$  25,793,210$  

2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets at start of year 25,156,350$  22,285,195$  
Actual return on plan assets 3,790,371     2,602,939     
Employer contribution 1,541,906     1,430,806     
Benefits paid (1,260,327)    (1,162,590)    
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 29,228,300$  25,156,350$  

Qualified Post-
pension retirement

plan plan
2008 1,119$         51$             
2009 1,126           54               
2010 1,136           57               
2011 1,186           61               
2012 1,238           64               

2013-2017 8,292           373             

2007 2006 2005
Service cost 1,381,723$  1,401,348$    1,194,639$    
Interest cost on projected
   benefit obligations 1,482,086   1,359,983     1,250,591     
Expected return on plan assets (1,883,320)  (1,779,840)    (1,571,239)    
Net amortization & deferral 130,947      263,230        180,768        
Net periodic pension cost 1,111,436$  1,244,721$    1,054,759$    
Weighted-average
  discount rate 5.86% 5.50% 6.00%
Rate of increase
  in future compensation 3.50% 3.00% 3.00%
Expected long-term rate
  of return on assets 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%

2008
Service cost 1,353,807$  
Interest cost on projected
   benefit obligations 1,632,661   
Expected return on plan assets (2,081,875)  
Net amortization & deferral (1,374)        
Net periodic pension cost 903,219$    
Weighted-average
  discount rate 6.29%
Rate of increase
  in future compensation 3.50%
Expected long-term rate
  of return on assets 7.50%

Asset category 2007 2006
Equity Securities 58.00% 59.80%
Debt Securities 40.00% 39.90%
Other 2.00% 0.03%
Total 100% 100%

at
September 30,

year of employment. The plan is governed by the rules and 
regulations in the Prototype Plan of the New York Bankers 
Association Retirement System and the Retirement System 
Adoption Agreement executed by the Bank. For purposes of 
investment, the plan contributions are pooled with those of 
other participants in the system.  
 
The following tables set forth the status of Suffolk Bancorp’s 
combined plan as of September 30, 2007 and September 30, 
2006, the time at which the annual valuation of the plan is 
made. 
 
The following table sets forth the plan’s change in benefit obli-
gation:  

The following table sets forth the plan’s change in plan assets: 

Suffolk will be required to make an annual minimum contribu-
tion of $983,196 by June 15, 2008 for the plan year ending Sep-
tember 30, 2007 and no contribution is currently required for 
the plan year ending September 30, 2008. 
 
The following table presents estimated benefits to be paid dur-
ing the years indicated: (in thousands) 

The following table summarizes the net periodic pension cost: 

The following table summarizes the net periodic pension cost 
for December 31, 2008, determined by assumptions established 
on the October 1, 2007, measurement date. This expense 
amount is subject to change if a significant plan-related event 
should occur before the end of fiscal 2008. 

Plan Assets 
 
Suffolk’s pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at 
September 30, 2007 and 2006, by asset category are as follows: 
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Investment Policies 
 
The New York State Bankers Retirement System (the 
“System”) was established in 1938 to provide for the payment 
of benefits to employees of participating banks. The System is 
overseen by a Board of Trustees who meet quarterly and set 
the investment policy guidelines.  
 
The System utilizes two investment management firms (which 
will be referred to as Firm I and Firm II), each investing ap-
proximately 50 percent of the total portfolio. The System’s 
investment objective is to exceed the investment benchmarks 
in each asset category. Each firm operates under a separate 
written investment policy approved by the Trustees and de-
signed to achieve an allocation approximating 60 percent in-
vested in equity securities and 40 percent invested in debt secu-
rities.  
 
Each Firm shall report at least quarterly to the Investment 
Committee and semiannually to the Board. 
 
Equity Securities 
 
The target allocation percentage for equity securities is 60 per-
cent but may vary from 50-70 percent at the investment man-
ager’s discretion.  
 
Firm I is employed for its expertise as a Value Manager. It is 
allowed to invest a certain amount of the equity portfolio under 
its management in international securities and to hedge said 
international securities so as to protect against currency de-
valuations. 
 
The equities managed by Firm II are in a separately managed 
Large Cap Core Equity Fund. The portfolio is permitted to 
invest in a diversified range of securities in the U.S. equity mar-
kets. Although the portfolio holds primarily common stocks, 
from time to time the portfolio may invest in other types of 
investments on an opportunistic basis. 
 
Debt Securities 
 
For both investment portfolios, the target allocation percentage 
for debt securities is 40 percent but may vary from 30-50 per-
cent at the investment manager’s discretion. 
 
The Fixed Income Portfolio managed by Firm I operates with 
guidelines relating to types of debt securities, quality ratings, 
maturities, and maximum single and sector allocations.  
 
The portfolio may trade foreign currencies in both spot and 
forward markets to effect securities transactions and to hedge 
underlying asset positions. The purchase and sale of futures 
and options on futures on foreign currencies and on foreign 
and domestic bonds, bond indices, and short-term securities is 
permitted; however, purchases may not be used to leverage the 
portfolio. Currency transactions may be used only to hedge 0-
100 percent of currency exposure of foreign securities. 
 
The Fixed Income portfolio managed by Firm II is a Core 

Bond Fixed Income Fund. The portfolio investments are lim-
ited to U.S. Dollar denominated, fixed income securities and 
selective derivatives designed to have similar attributes of such 
fixed income securities. The term “fixed income security” is 
defined to include instruments with fixed, floating, variable, 
adjustable, auction rate, zero, or other coupon features. 
 
Expected Long-Term Rate of Return 
 
The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets reflects 
long-term earnings expectations on existing plan assets and 
those contributions expected to be received during the current 
plan year. In estimating that rate, appropriate consideration was 
given to historical returns earned by plan assets in the fund and 
the rates of return expected to be available for reinvestment. 
Average rates of return over the past one-, three-, five-, and 
ten-year periods were determined and subsequently adjusted to 
reflect current capital market assumptions and changes in in-
vestment allocations. 
 
(B) Director’s Retirement Income Agreement of the Bank 
of the Hamptons — On April 11, 1994, Suffolk acquired 
Hamptons Bancshares, Inc., which had a director’s deferred 
compensation plan. The liability for this plan was approxi-
mately $190,000 and $222,000 on December 31, 2007 and 
2006. Interest (approximately $16,000 in 2007 and $18,000 in 
2006) is accrued over the term of the plan. In 2007, the Bank 
paid approximately $48,000 to participants. 
  
(C) Deferred Compensation 
 
1986 Plan — During 1986, the Board approved a deferred 
compensation plan. Under the plan, certain employees and 
Directors of Suffolk elected to defer compensation aggregating 
approximately $177,000 in exchange for stated future payments 
to be made at specified dates. The rate of return on the initial 
deferral was guaranteed. For purposes of financial reporting, 
interest (approximately $206,000 in 2007, $216,000 in 2006, 
and $222,000 in 2005) at the plan’s contractual rate is being 
accrued on the deferral amounts over the expected plan term.  
 
During 2007, Suffolk made payments of approximately 
$160,000 to participants of the plan. Suffolk has purchased life 
insurance policies on the plan’s participants based upon rea-
sonable actuarial benefit and other financial assumptions where 
the present value of the projected cash flows from the insur-
ance proceeds approximates the present value of the projected 
cost of the employee benefit. Suffolk is the named beneficiary 
on the policies. Net insurance income related to the policies 
aggregated approximately $29,000, $20,000, and $72,000, in 
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. 
 
1999 Plan—During 1999, the Board approved a non-qualified 
deferred compensation plan. Under this plan, certain employ-
ees and Directors of Suffolk may elect to defer some or all of 
their compensation in exchange for a future payment of the 
compensation deferred, with accrued interest, at retirement. 
During 2007, participants deferred compensation totaling 
$208,000. No payments have been made to any of the partici-
pants. 
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(D) Post Retirement Benefits Other Than Pension —The 
following table sets forth the post retirement benefit liability 
included in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of condition as of December 31, 2007 and 2006: 

Net periodic post retirement benefit cost (the “net periodic 
cost”) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 
includes the following components: 

Benefit assumptions are based on sponsor contributions of 
$0.27 per participant per month per $1,000 of life insurance. 
The retiree is responsible for the premiums, less sponsor con-
tributions. The Bank no longer contributes towards a retiree 
health plan. 
  
(E) 401(k) Retirement Plan 
 
The Bank has a 401(k) Retirement Plan and Trust (the “401(k) 
Plan”). Employees who have attained the age of 21 and have 
completed one year of service have the option to participate. 
Employees may elect to contribute up to a dollar limit which is 
set by law. The limit was $15,500 for 2007. The Bank will 
match one-half of the employee's contribution up to a maxi-
mum of 6% of the employee's annual gross compensation sub-
ject to the aforementioned limit. Employees are fully vested in 
their own contributions and the Bank’s matching contributions 
are fully vested once the participant has six years of service. 
Bank contributions under the 401(k) Plan amounted to 
$366,000, $350,000, and $325,000 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, 
respectively. The Bank funds all amounts when due. At De-
cember 31, 2007, contributions to the 401(k) Plan were in-
vested in various bond, equity, money market, or diversified 
funds as directed by each employee. The 401(k) Plan does not 
allow for investment in the Company’s common stock.  
 
Note 11 — Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 
  
In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding 
commitments and contingent liabilities, such as standby letters 
of credit and commitments to extend credit, which are not 
reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments. No material losses are anticipated as a result of these 
transactions. Suffolk is contingently liable under standby letters 
of credit in the amount of $21,094,000 and $16,877,000 at De-
cember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Suffolk has commit-
ments to make or to extend credit in the form of revolving 

open-end lines secured by one- to four-family residential prop-
erties, commercial real estate, construction and land develop-
ment loans, and lease financing arrangements in the amount of 
$174,466,000 and $161,600,000, and commercial loans of 
$55,863,000 and $43,285,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 
2006, respectively. 
 
In the opinion of management, based upon legal counsel, li-
abilities arising from legal proceedings against Suffolk would 
not have a significant effect on the financial position of Suf-
folk. 
  
During 2007, Suffolk was required to maintain balances with 
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for reserve and clearing 
requirements. These balances averaged $3,412,000 in 2007. 
 
Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 
2006, and 2005 amounted to $1,003,000, $978,000, and 
$963,000, respectively. 
 
At December 31, 2007, Suffolk was obligated under a number 
of non-cancelable operating leases for land and buildings used 
for bank purposes. Minimum annual rentals, exclusive of taxes 
and other charges under non-cancelable operating leases, are 
summarized as follows: (in thousands) 

Note 12 — Regulatory Capital 
 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements 
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory 
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, 
if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s 
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank 
must meet specific capital requirements that involve quantita-
tive measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting 
practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also 
subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about com-
ponents, risk weighting, and other factors. 
 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capi-
tal adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts 
and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as 
defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as 
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that 
the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is 
subject. 

Minimum Rentals
2008 1,064$     
2009 1,104       
2010 1,047       
2011 1,029       
2012  and thereafter 5,975       

These rentals do not include obligations for two new offices currently
scheduled to open in 2008. 

2007 2006
Accumulated post retirement
  benefit obligation (1,287,267)$   (1,264,802)$   
Unrecognized net gain (1,055,855)    (1,068,130)    
Unrecognized past service cost (10,794)        (11,602)        
Unrecognized transition obligation 3,742 4,650
Post retirement benefit liability (2,350,174)$   (2,339,884)$   

2007 2006 2005
Service cost of benefits earned 35,408$      39,392$        37,411$        
Interest cost on liability 75,570       65,918         64,102         
Unrecognized (gain) loss (52,895)      (56,743)        (61,133)        
Net periodic cost 58,083$      48,567$        40,380$        
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As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the Bank as well capitalized 
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum 
total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. Management believes that since that notification no 
circumstances have changed the institution’s category.  
  
The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the following table: (dollars in thousands) 

Note 13 — Credit Concentrations 
 
Suffolk’s principal investments are loans and a portfolio of 
short- and medium-term debt of the United States Treasury, 
states and other political subdivisions, U.S. government agen-
cies, corporations, and mortgage-backed securities and collater-
alized mortgage obligations. 
  
Loans secured by real estate comprise 68.2 percent of the port-
folio and 44.5 percent of assets, 33.2 percent of which are for 
commercial real estate. Commercial real estate loans present 
greater risk than residential mortgages. Suffolk has attempted 
to minimize the risks of these loans by considering several fac-
tors, including the creditworthiness of the borrower, location, 
condition, value, and the business prospects for the security 
property. Commercial, financial, and agricultural loans, unse-
cured or secured by collateral other than real estate, comprise 
21.3 percent of the loan portfolio and 13.9 percent of assets. 
These loans present significantly greater risk than other types 
of loans. Average credits are greater in size than consumer 
loans, and unsecured loans may be more difficult to collect. 
Suffolk obtains, whenever possible, both the personal guaran-
tees of the principal(s) and cross-guarantees among the princi-
pals’ business enterprises. Consumer loans, net of unearned 
discounts, comprised 10.4 percent of Suffolk’s loan portfolio 
and 6.8 percent of assets. A majority are indirect dealer-
generated loans secured by automobiles. Most of these loans 
are made to residents of Suffolk’s primary lending area. Each 
loan is small in amount. Borrowers represent a cross-section of 
the population and are employed in a variety of industries. The 
risk presented by any one loan is correspondingly small, and 
therefore, the risk that this portion of the portfolio presents to 
Suffolk depends on the financial stability of the population as a 
whole, not any one entity or industry.  
 
Municipal obligations constitute 38.1 percent of the investment 
portfolio and 10.6 percent of assets. These obligations present 
slightly greater risk than U.S. Treasury securities, or those se-
cured by the U.S. government, but significantly less risk than 

loans because they are backed by the full faith and taxing 
power of the issuer, most of which is located in the state of 
New York. U.S. Treasury securities represented 2.4 percent of 
the investment portfolio and 0.7 percent of assets. U.S. govern-
ment agency debt securities represented 25.6 percent of the 
investment portfolio and 7.1 percent of assets. These offer little 
or no financial risk. Collateralized mortgage obligations repre-
sented 31.6 percent of the investment portfolio and 8.8 percent 
of assets. Mortgage-backed securities represented 0.2 percent 
of the investment portfolio and 0.1 percent of assets. 
 
Note 14 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
  
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair 
values of Suffolk’s financial instruments. SFAS No. 107, 
“Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” de-
fines the fair value of a financial instrument as the amount at 
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transac-
tion between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liqui-
dation: (in thousands) 

Limitations 
 
The following estimates are made at a specific point in time 
and may be based on judgments regarding losses expected in 

Minimum Minimum to be 
Actual capital ratios for capital "Well Capitalized" under prompt

adequacy corrective action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2007

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 114,858$    10.21% 89,991$      8.00% 112,488$    10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 107,186      9.53% 44,995        4.00% 67,493        6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 107,186      7.60% 56,449        4.00% 70,562        5.00%
As of December 31, 2006

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 119,366$    11.29% 84,565$      8.00% 105,706$    10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 111,815      10.58% 42,282        4.00% 63,423        6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 111,815      7.94% 56,335        4.00% 70,418        5.00%

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Cash & cash equivalents 56,633$    56,633$    43,576$    43,576$    
Investment securities
  available for sale 392,796    392,796    403,246    403,246    
Investment securities
  held to maturity 17,611     18,199     15,097     15,647     
Loans, net 958,800    964,076    891,447    885,045    
Accrued interest receivable 7,359       7,359       7,609       7,609       
Deposits 1,143,375 1,143,558 1,139,075 1,137,047 
Borrowings 198,320    198,303    120,135    120,138    
Accrued interest payable 2,247       2,247       3,373       3,373       

2007 2006



 37 

 

Investment Securities 
  
The fair value of the investment portfolio, including mortgage-
backed securities, was based on quoted market prices or market 
prices of similar instruments. 
 
Deposit Liabilities 
  
The fair value of certificates of deposit less than $100,000 was 
calculated by discounting cash flows with applicable origination 
rates. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of certificates of 
deposit less than $100,000 totaling $198,804,000 had a carrying 
value of $198,898,000. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of 
certificates of deposit more than $100,000 totaling 
$117,072,000 had a carrying value of $116,795,000. 

  
Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of 
Credit, and Written Financial Guarantees 
  
The fair value of commitments to extend credit was estimated 
by either discounting cash flows or using the fees currently 
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account 
the remaining terms of the agreements and the current credit-
worthiness of the counterparties. 
 
Credit in the form of revolving open-end lines secured by one- 
to four-family residential properties, commercial real estate, 
construction and land development loans, and lease financing 
arrangements were $174,466,000 and $161,600,000 as of De-
cember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 
The estimated fair value of written financial guarantees and 
letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar 
agreements. The contractual amounts of these commitments 
were $76,957,000 and $60,171,000 at December 31, 2007 and 
2006, respectively. The fees charged for the commitments were 
not material in amount. 

the future, risk, and other factors that are subjective in nature. 
The methods and assumptions used to produce the fair value 
estimates follow. 
 
Short-Term Instruments 
 
Short-term financial instruments are valued at the carrying 
amounts included in the statements of condition, which are 
reasonable estimates of fair value due to the relatively short 
term of the instruments. This approach applies to cash and 
cash equivalents; federal funds purchased; accrued interest re-
ceivable; non-interest-bearing demand deposits; N.O.W., 
money market, and saving accounts; accrued interest payable; 
and other borrowings. 
 
Loans 
  
Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar 
characteristics. Loans are segregated by type. 
  
The fair value of performing loans was calculated by discount-
ing scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using 
estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and inter-
est rate risk of the loan. Estimated maturity is based on the 
Bank’s history of repayments for each type of loan and an esti-
mate of the effect of the current economy. 
  
Fair value for significant non-performing loans is based on 
recent external appraisals of collateral, if any. If appraisals are 
not available, estimated cash flows are discounted using a rate 
commensurate with the associated risk. Assumptions regarding 
credit risk, cash flows, and discount rates are made using avail-
able market information and specific borrower information.  
 
The carrying amount and fair value of loans were as follows at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006: (in thousands) 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Commercial, financial
  & agricultural 204,242$  205,056$  182,840$  182,460$  
Commercial real estate 318,601    320,260    292,458    289,374    
Real estate
  construction loans 83,715     83,663     80,687     80,657     
Residential mortgages
  (1st & 2nd liens) 184,743    184,924    155,107    154,421    
Home equity loans 67,081     68,378     76,361     75,625     
Consumer loans, net of 
  unearned discounts 99,314     100,691    103,102    101,616    
Other loans 1,104       1,104       892         892         

Totals 958,800$  964,076$  891,447$  885,045$  

2007 2006
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Note 15 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
 
The comparative results for the four quarters of 2007 and 2006 are as follows: (in thousands of dollars except for share and per-share 
data) 

Note 16 — Suffolk Bancorp (Parent Company Only) Condensed Financial Statements (in thousands) 

1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr. 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr.
Interest income 22,032$       22,364$       22,474$       22,211$       20,539$       21,817$       21,858$       21,995$       
Interest expense 5,950          6,379          6,427          6,361          4,384          5,148          5,438          5,529          
Net interest income 16,082        15,985        16,047        15,850        16,155        16,669        16,420        16,466        
Provision for loan losses 112            18              22              225            300            300            345            21              
Net interest income after provision
  for loan losses 15,970        15,967        16,025        15,625        15,855        16,369        16,075        16,445        
Other income 2,371          2,558          2,756          2,910          2,386          2,719          2,750          2,817          
Other expense 10,323        10,319        9,907          9,843          9,860          10,039        10,002        10,074        
Provision for income taxes 2,869          2,874          2,831          3,088          3,157          3,410          2,655          3,591          
Net income 5,149$        5,332$        6,043$        5,604$        5,224$        5,639$        6,168$        5,597$        
Basic per-share data:
  Net income 0.51$          0.54$          0.61$          0.58$          0.50$          0.55$          0.60$          0.55$          
  Cash dividends 0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          0.22$          
  Average shares 10,189,580   9,957,096 9,765,095 9,676,500 10,355,554   10,297,824 10,247,565 10,238,718

2007 2006

Condensed Statements of Condition as of December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Assets
Due From Banks 2,177$        2,298$        2,098$        
Investment in Subsidiaries: SCNB 108,969       108,559       102,373       
Other Assets 341            296            242            
Total Assets 111,487$     111,153$     104,713$     
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Dividends Payable 2,121$        2,253$        2,081$        
Other Liabilities 385            334            631            
Stockholders' Equity 108,981       108,566       102,001       
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 111,487$     111,153$     104,713$     

Condensed Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Income
Dividends From Subsidiary Bank 29,079        14,911        22,546        

29,079        14,911        22,546        
Expense
Other Expense 434            262            172            
Income Before Equity in Undistributed Net Income of Subsidiaries 28,645        14,649        22,374        
Equity in Undistributed Earnings of Subsidiaries (6,517)         7,979          (272)           
Net Income 22,128$       22,628$       22,102$       

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
   Net Income 22,128$       22,628$       22,102$       
   Less: Equity in Undistributed Earnings of Subsidiaries 6,517          (7,979)         272            
   Other, Net 245            93              151            
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 28,890        14,742        22,525        
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
   Maturities of Investment Securities; Available for Sale -             -             -             
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities -             -             -             
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
   Repurchase of Common Stock (20,227)       (5,674)         (14,200)       
   Dividends Paid (8,784)         (8,868)         (8,301)         
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (29,011)       (14,542)       (22,501)       
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (121)           200            24              
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,298          2,098          2,074          
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 2,177$        2,298$        2,098$        
Note: No income tax provision has been recorded on the books of Suffolk Bancorp since it files a return consolidated with its subsidiaries.



 39 

 

 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 

Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Suffolk Bancorp 
 
 
We have audited Suffolk Bancorp’s (a New York corporation) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based 
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO). Suffolk Bancorp’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting 
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on  Suffolk Bancorp’s internal control over financial reporting based on our 
audit. 
  
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal con-
trol based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainte-
nance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with au-
thorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in condi-
tions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Suffolk Bancorp maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated statements of condition of Suffolk Bancorp as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated 
March 7, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANT THORNTON LLP 
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
March 7, 2008 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTING FIRM 

 
 
Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Suffolk Bancorp 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of 
condition of Suffolk Bancorp (a New York corporation) and its 
subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ 
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits. 
  
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements. An audit also includes as-
sessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of Suffolk Bancorp and its subsidiary as of 

December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
As discussed in Note 9, the Company has adopted FASB Inter-
pretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An 
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, as a cumulative effect 
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of 
January 1, 2007. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial state-
ments, the Company has adopted Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board Statement (FASB) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payments 
and FASB No.158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension 
and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements 
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) in 2006. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the effectiveness of Suffolk Bancorp’s internal control over fi-
nancial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Com-
mission (COSO) and our report dated March 7, 2008 expressed 
an unqualified opinion. 
 
 
 
 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
March 7, 2008 
 

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
 
 

Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Suffolk Bancorp 
 
The management of Suffolk Bancorp is responsible for the 
preparation and integrity of the consolidated financial statements 
and all other information in this annual report, whether audited 
or unaudited. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and, 
where necessary, are based on management’s best estimates and 
judgment. The financial information contained elsewhere in this 
annual report is consistent with that in the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Suffolk Bancorp’s independent registered public accounting firm 
has been engaged to perform an audit of the consolidated finan-
cial statements in accordance with auditing standards of the Pub-
lic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), and 
the firm’s report expresses its opinion as to the fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements and conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Suffolk Bancorp maintains systems of internal controls that pro-
vide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and keeps 
reliable financial records for preparing financial statements. In-

ternal audits are conducted to continually evaluate the adequacy 
and effectiveness of such internal controls, policies, and proce-
dures. 
 
The audit committee of the Board of Directors, which is com-
posed entirely of directors who are not employees of Suffolk 
Bancorp, meets periodically with the internal auditors and man-
agement to discuss audit and internal accounting controls, regu-
latory audits, and financial reporting matters. 

 
 
 
 
 

Thomas S. Kohlmann 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
      

 
 
 
 
 

J. Gordon Huszagh 
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
 
Riverhead, New York 
March 7, 2008 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

 
FORM 10-K 

 
(Mark One) 

[X] Annual report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
 For the fiscal year ended      December 31,       
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Commission File Number:    01-13580    
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Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in  
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Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) 
of the Exchange Act. YES    NO _ X__ 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Ex-
change Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and 
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES  X  NO _ __ 
 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not be 
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of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X] 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of 
“accelerated filer” and “large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 
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 As of January 31, 2008, there were 9,610,730 shares outstanding of the Registrant’s common stock. 
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PART I 
 

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 
  
Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held April 8, 2008, filed on March 
7, 2008. (Part III) 
 
ITEM 1. Business  
 

Suffolk Bancorp (“Suffolk”) 
  
Suffolk was incorporated on January 2, 1985 as a bank holding 
company. On that date, Suffolk acquired, and currently owns, all 
of the outstanding capital stock of Suffolk County National 
Bank. On July 14, 1988, Suffolk acquired all the outstanding 
capital stock of Island Computer Corporation of New York, Inc. 
The business of Suffolk consists primarily of the ownership, 
supervision, and control of its subsidiaries. On April 11, 1994, 
Suffolk acquired all the outstanding capital stock of Hamptons 
Bancshares, Inc. and merged it into a subsidiary. During 1996, 
the operations of Island Computer Corporation of New York, 
Inc. were assumed by Suffolk County National Bank. 
 
Suffolk’s chief competition includes local banks with main or 
branch offices in the service area of Suffolk County National 
Bank, including North Fork Bank and Bridgehampton National 
Bank. Additionally, New York City money center banks and 
regional banks provide competition. These banks include pri-
marily Citibank, Bank of America, J.P. Morgan Chase, Com-
merce Bank, and Hudson City Savings. 
  
Suffolk and its subsidiaries had 341 full-time and 52 part-time 
employees on December 31, 2007. 
  

Suffolk County National Bank (the “Bank”) 
 
The Suffolk County National Bank of Riverhead was organized 
under the national banking laws of the United States of America 
on January 6, 1890. The Bank is a member of the Federal Re-
serve System, and its deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation to the extent provided by law. 
 
Directed by members of the communities it serves, the Bank’s 
main service area includes the towns of Babylon, Brookhaven, 
East Hampton, Islip, Riverhead, Smithtown, Southampton, and 
Southold. The main office of the Bank is situated at 6 West Sec-
ond Street, Riverhead, New York. Its branch offices are located 
at Bohemia, Center Moriches, Cutchogue, Deer Park, East 
Hampton, Hampton Bays, Hauppauge, Manorville, Mattituck, 
Medford, Miller Place, Montauk, Port Jefferson, Riverhead, Sag 
Harbor, Sayville, Shoreham, Smithtown, Southampton, Wading 
River, Water Mill, West Babylon, and Westhampton Beach, New 
York. Two additional offices in Middle Island and Port Jefferson 
Station are scheduled to open in 2008. 
 
The Bank is a full-service bank serving the needs of the local 
residents of Suffolk County. Most of the Bank’s business is de-
voted to serving those residing in the immediate area of the 
Bank’s main and branch offices. Among the services offered by 
the Bank are checking accounts, savings accounts, time and sav-
ings certificates, money market accounts, negotiable-order-of-

withdrawal accounts, holiday club accounts, and individual re-
tirement accounts; secured and unsecured loans, including com-
mercial loans to individuals, partnerships, and corporations, agri-
cultural loans to farmers, installment loans to finance small busi-
nesses, mobile home loans, and automobile loans; home equity 
and real estate mortgage loans; safe deposit boxes; trust and es-
tate services; the sale of mutual funds and annuities; and the 
maintenance of a master pension plan for self-employed indi-
viduals’ participation. The business of the Bank is only mildly 
seasonal. 
 

BUSINESS SEGMENT REPORTING 
 
Suffolk is a regional bank, which offers a wide array of products 
and services to its customers. Pursuant to its banking strategy, 
emphasis is placed on building relationships with its customers, 
as opposed to building specific lines of business. As a result, at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, Suffolk is not organized around 
discernible lines of business and prefers to work as an integrated 
unit to customize solutions for its customers, with business line 
emphasis and product offerings changing over time as needs and 
demands change. See page 28 of this Annual Report to Share-
holders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. 
 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION 
 
Suffolk files Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports 
on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, Proxy State-
ments on Form 14(a), and any amendments to those reports, 
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“SEC”). The public may read and copy any of these materials at 
the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, 
Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the 
Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-
800-SEC-0330 (1-800-732-0330). The SEC also maintains an 
Internet site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy, 
and information statements, and other information regarding 
issuers, including Suffolk, that file electronically with the SEC. 
Suffolk also makes these reports available free of charge through 
its Internet website (http://www.suffolkbancorp.com) as soon 
as practicably possible after Suffolk files these reports electroni-
cally with the SEC. 
 

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION 
  
References in this section to applicable statutes and regulations are brief 
summaries only, and do not purport to be complete. The reader should con-
sult such statutes and regulations themselves for a full understanding of the 
details of their operation. 
 
As a consequence of the extensive regulation of commercial 
banking activities in the United States, the business of Suffolk 
and its subsidiaries is particularly susceptible to federal and state 
legislation that may have the effect of increasing or decreasing 
the cost of doing business, modifying permissible activities, or 
enhancing the competitive position of other financial institu-
tions. 
 
Suffolk is a bank holding company registered under the Bank 
Holding Company Act (“BHC”Act) and is subject to supervision 
and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board. Federal laws sub-
ject bank holding companies to particular restrictions on the 
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types of activities in which they may engage, and to a range of 
supervisory requirements and activities, including regulatory 
enforcement actions for violation of laws and policies. 
 

Activities “Closely Related” to Banking 
 
The BHC Act prohibits a bank holding company, with certain 
limited exceptions, from acquiring direct or indirect ownership 
or control of any voting shares of any company that is not a 
bank or from engaging in any activities other than those of bank-
ing, managing or controlling banks and certain other subsidiaries, 
or furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiar-
ies. One principal exception to these prohibitions allows the 
acquisition of interests in companies whose activities are found 
by the Federal Reserve Board, by order or regulation, to be 
closely related to banking, or managing or controlling banks. If a 
bank holding company has become a “financial holding com-
pany” (an “FHC”), it may engage in activities that are jointly 
determined by the Federal Reserve Board and the Treasury De-
partment to be “financial in nature or incidental to such financial 
activity.” FHCs may also engage in activities that are determined 
by the Federal Reserve to be “complementary to financial activi-
ties.” See “Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act” for a brief summary of the 
statutory provisions relating to FHCs. 

  
Safe and Sound Banking Practices 

 
Bank holding companies are not permitted to engage in unsafe 
and unsound banking practices. The Federal Reserve Board may 
order a bank holding company to terminate an activity or control 
of a nonbank subsidiary if such activity or control constitutes a 
significant risk to the financial safety, soundness, or stability of a 
subsidiary bank and is inconsistent with sound banking princi-
ples. Regulation Y also requires a holding company to give the 
Federal Reserve Board prior notice of any redemption or repur-
chase of its own equity securities, if the consideration to be paid, 
together with the consideration paid for any repurchases or re-
demptions in the preceding year, is equal to 10 percent or more 
of the company’s consolidated net worth. 
 
The Federal Reserve Board has broad authority to prohibit ac-
tivities of bank holding companies and their non-banking sub-
sidiaries which represent unsafe and unsound banking practices 
or which constitute violations of laws or regulations. Notably, 
the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement 
Act of 1989 (“FIRREA”) provides that the Federal Reserve 
Board can assess civil money penalties for such practices or vio-
lations, which can be as high as $1 million per day. FIRREA 
contains expansive provisions regarding the scope of individuals 
and entities against which such penalties may be assessed.  

  
Annual Reporting and Examinations 

 
Suffolk is required to file an annual report with the Federal Re-
serve Board, and such additional information as the Federal Re-
serve Board may require pursuant to the BHC Act. The Federal 
Reserve Board may examine a bank holding company or any of 
its subsidiaries, and charge the company for the cost of such an 
examination. Suffolk is also subject to reporting and disclosure 
requirements under state and federal securities laws.  
 

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subsidiaries 
 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act 
of 1991 (“FDICIA”) required each federal banking agency to 
revise its risk-based capital standards to ensure that those stan-
dards take adequate account of interest rate risk, concentration 
of credit risk, and the risks of nontraditional activities, as well as 
reflect the actual performance and expected risk of loss on mul-
tifamily mortgages. In accordance with the law, each federal 
banking agency has specified, by regulation, the levels at which 
an insured institution would be considered “well capitalized,” 
“adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly un-
dercapitalized,” and “critically undercapitalized.” Under these 
regulations, as of December 31, 2007, the Bank would be 
deemed to be “well capitalized.” 
 
FDICIA requires bank regulators to take “prompt corrective 
action” to resolve problems associated with insured depository 
institutions. In the event an institution becomes 
“undercapitalized,” it must submit a capital restoration plan. If 
an institution becomes “significantly undercapitalized” or 
“critically undercapitalized,” additional and significant limitations 
are placed on the institution. The capital restoration plan of an 
undercapitalized institution will not be accepted by the regulators 
unless each company “having control of” the undercapitalized 
institution “guarantees” the subsidiary’s compliance with the 
capital restoration plan until it becomes “adequately capitalized.” 
Suffolk has control of the Bank for purpose of this statute. 
 
Additionally, Federal Reserve Board policy discourages the pay-
ment of dividends by a bank holding company from borrowed 
funds as well as payments that would adversely affect capital 
adequacy. Failure to meet the capital guidelines may result in 
supervisory or enforcement actions by the Federal Reserve 
Board.  

 
Acquisition by Bank Holding Companies 

 
The BHC Act requires every bank holding company to obtain 
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it may 
acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank, or own-
ership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such 
acquisition it would own or control, directly or indirectly, more 
than 5 percent of the voting shares of such bank. In approving 
bank acquisitions by bank holding companies, the Federal Re-
serve Board is required to consider the financial and managerial 
resources and future prospects of the bank holding company 
and banks concerned, the convenience and needs of the commu-
nities to be served, and the effect on competition. The Attorney 
General of the United States may, within 30 days after approval 
of an acquisition by the Federal Reserve Board, bring an action 
challenging such acquisition under the federal antitrust laws, in 
which case the effectiveness of such approval is stayed pending a 
final ruling by the courts. Under certain circumstances, the 30-
day period may be shortened to 15 days. 

 
Interstate Acquisitions 

 
Under the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Effi-
ciency Act of 1994, beginning September 29, 1995, bank holding 
companies may acquire banks in any state subject to limited re-
strictions including bank age and deposit concentration limits, 
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notwithstanding contrary state law. All banks owned in common 
by a bank holding company may act as agents for one another. 
An agent bank may receive deposits, renew time deposits, accept 
payments, and close and service loans for its principal bank and 
not be considered to be a branch of the principal banks.  
 
Banks also may merge with banks in another state and operate 
either office as a branch, preexisting contrary state law notwith-
standing. This law became effective automatically in all states on 
June 1, 1997, unless a state, by legislation enacted before June 1, 
1997, opted out of coverage by the interstate branching provi-
sion. Upon consummation of an interstate merger, the resulting 
bank may acquire or establish branches on the same basis that 
any participant in the merger could have if the merger had not 
taken place.  
 
Banks may also merge with branches of banks in other states 
without merging with the banks themselves, or may establish de 
novo branches in other states if the laws of the other states ex-
pressly permit such mergers or such interstate de novo branching. 
  

Banking Regulation 
 
The Bank is a national bank, which is subject to regulation and 
supervision primarily by the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency (the “OCC”) and secondarily by the Federal Reserve 
Board and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the 
“FDIC”). The Bank is subject to the requirements and restric-
tions under federal law, including requirements to maintain re-
serves against deposits, restrictions on the types and amounts of 
loans that may be granted and the interest that may be charged 
thereon, and limitations on the types of investments that may be 
made and the types of services that may be offered. Various con-
sumer laws and regulations also affect the operations of the 
Bank. 
  

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates 
 
Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act imposes quantitative and 
qualitative limits on transactions between a bank and any affili-
ate, and requires certain levels of collateral for such loans. It also 
limits the amount of advances to third parties which are collater-
alized by the securities or obligations of Suffolk or its subsidiar-
ies. 
 
Section 23B requires that certain transactions between the Bank 
and its affiliates must be on terms substantially the same, or at 
least as favorable, as those prevailing at the time for comparable 
transactions with or involving other nonaffiliated companies. In 
the absence of such comparable transactions, any transaction 
between the Bank and its affiliates must be on terms and under 
circumstances, including credit standards, that in good faith 
would be offered to or would apply to nonaffiliated companies. 
  

Examinations 
 
The OCC regularly examines the Bank and records of the Bank. 
The FDIC may also periodically examine and evaluate insured 
banks. In addition, the Federal Reserve Board regularly examines 
the Bank and records of Suffolk. 

Standards for Safety and Soundness 
 
As part of the FDICIA’s efforts to promote the safety and 
soundness of depository institutions and their holding compa-
nies, appropriate federal banking regulators are required to have 
in place regulations specifying operational and management stan-
dards (addressing internal controls, loan documentation, credit 
underwriting, and interest rate risk), asset quality, and earnings. 
In addition, the Federal Reserve Board, the OCC, and FDIC 
have extensive authority to police unsafe or unsound practices 
and violations of applicable laws and regulations by depository 
institutions and their holding companies. For example, the FDIC 
may terminate the deposit insurance of any institution that it 
determines has engaged in an unsafe or unsound practice. The 
agencies can also assess civil money penalties of up to $1 million 
per day, issue cease-and-desist or removal orders, seek injunc-
tions, and publicly disclose such actions. 
 

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act 
 
The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, effective on March 11, 2000, per-
mits bank holding companies to become FHCs and, by doing so, 
affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and en-
gage in other activities that are financial in nature or complemen-
tary thereto. A bank holding company may become an FHC, if 
each of its subsidiary banks is “well capitalized” under the FDI-
CIA prompt corrective action provisions, is “well managed,” and 
has at least a “satisfactory” rating under the Community Rein-
vestment Act as of 1977 as amended (the “CRA”), by filing a 
declaration that the bank holding company wishes to become an 
FHC and meets all applicable requirements. 
 
No prior regulatory approval is required for an FHC to acquire a 
company, other than a bank or savings association, engaged in 
activities permitted under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Activi-
ties specified in the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act as being “financial 
in nature” include securities underwriting and dealing, and insur-
ance underwriting and agency activities. Activities that the Fed-
eral Reserve Board has determined to be closely related to bank-
ing are also deemed to be financial in nature. 
 
A national bank also may engage, subject to limitations on in-
vestment, in activities that are financial in nature, other than 
insurance underwriting, merchant banking, real estate develop-
ment, and real estate investment, through a financial subsidiary 
of the bank, if the bank is “well capitalized,” “well managed,” 
and has at least a “satisfactory” CRA rating. Subsidiary banks of 
an FHC or national bank with financial subsidiaries must con-
tinue to be well capitalized and well managed in order to con-
tinue to engage in such activities without regulatory actions or 
restrictions, which could include divestiture of the financial sub-
sidiary or subsidiaries. In addition, an FHC or a bank may not 
acquire a company that is engaged in such activities unless each 
of the subsidiary banks of the FHC or the bank has at least a 
“satisfactory” rating. At December 31, 2007, the Bank was rated 
as “outstanding.” 
 
In July of 2001, provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act be-
came effective that impose additional requirements on financial 
institutions with respect to customer privacy. These provisions 
generally prohibit disclosure of customer information to nonaf-
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filiated third parties unless the customer has been given the op-
portunity to object, and has not objected, to such disclosure. 
Financial institutions are also required to disclose their privacy 
policies to customers annually and may be required to comply 
with provisions of applicable state law if such provisions are 
more protective of customer privacy than those contained in the 
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. 
 

Governmental Monetary Policies and  
Economic Conditions 

 
The principal sources of funds essential to the business of banks 
and bank holding companies are deposits, stockholders’ equity, 
and borrowed funds. The availability of these various sources of 
funds and other potential sources, such as preferred stock or 
commercial paper, and the extent to which they are utilized, de-
pends on many factors, the most important of which are the 
Federal Reserve Board’s monetary policies and the relative costs 
of different types of funds. An important function of the Federal 
Reserve Board is to regulate the national supply of bank credit in 
order to combat recession and curb inflationary pressure. 
Among the instruments of monetary policy used by the Federal 
Reserve Board to implement these objectives are open market 
operations in United States government securities, changes in 
the discount rate on bank borrowings, and changes in reserve 
requirements against bank deposits. The monetary policies of the 
Federal Reserve Board have had a significant effect on the oper-
ating results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to 
continue to do so in the future. In view of the recent changes in 
regulations affecting commercial banks and other actions and 
proposed actions by the federal government and its monetary 
and fiscal authorities, including proposed changes in the struc-
ture of banking in the United States, no prediction can be made 
as to future changes in interest rates, availability of credit, de-
posit balances, or the overall performance of banks generally or 
of Suffolk and its subsidiaries in particular. 
 
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors 
 
Net income at Suffolk is primarily reliant on its ability to gener-
ate net interest income, and to a lesser extent, fee income. Ac-
cordingly, factors affecting Suffolk Bancorp include particularly, 
but are not limited to: credit risk, the ability of borrowers to re-
pay debt; interest rate risk, changes in interest rates that may 
cause the net interest margin between earning assets and inter-
est-bearing liabilities to contract; market risk, changes in the 
market value of securities owing to changes in interest rates; 
increases or decreases in retail and commercial economic activity 
in Suffolk’s market area; variations in the ability and propensity 
of consumers and businesses to borrow, repay, or deposit 
money, or to use other banking and financial services. Further, it 
could take Suffolk longer than anticipated to implement its stra-
tegic plans to increase revenue and manage non-interest expense, 
or it may not be possible to implement those plans at all. Finally, 
new and unanticipated legislation, regulation, or accounting stan-
dards may require Suffolk to change its practices in ways that 
materially change the results of operations. Each of these factors 
may change in ways that management does not now foresee. 
They are subject, however, to a variety of uncertainties that 
could cause future results to vary materially from Suffolk’s his-
torical performance, or from current expectations. 
 

Additional information about the nature of these risks and how 
they are managed can be found in the following locations in 
this report: 
 
Credit Risk: under the captions “Non-Performing Loans” and 
“Summary of Loan Losses and Allowance for Loan Losses” on 
page 12 of this report. 
 
Interest Rate Risk: under the captions “Interest Rate Sensitiv-
ity” and “Asset/Liability Management and Liquidity” on pages 
15 and 17 of this report, respectively. 
 
Market Risk: under the caption “Market Risk” on page 15 of 
this report. 
 
Management believes that it is imprudent to make or rely on 
assertions made before the fact concerning the probability that 
any specific risk will be realized, and that any such assertions 
would be speculative. Instead, credit, asset/liability manage-
ment, investment, compliance, and other operating policies are 
written to account for a range of possible outcomes, and pre-
vent or ameliorate those outcomes falling at the margins of 
possible occurrence. 
 

STATISTICAL DISCLOSURE 
  
ITEM 2. Properties 
 
 Registrant 
 
Suffolk as such has no physical properties. Office facilities of 
Suffolk are located at 4 West Second Street, Riverhead, New 
York.  
 
Bank 
 
The Bank’s main office campus, with three buildings, is located 
at 6 West Second Street, Riverhead, New York, title to which is 
held by the Town of Riverhead, New York Industrial Develop-
ment Agency for reasons of tax abatement, but to which the 
Bank has all other rights of ownership. The Bank also owns a 
total of 12 properties with 12 buildings in fee, and holds 16 
buildings under lease agreements. The bank also holds two 
buildings under lease agreements that will commence upon 
occupancy of the buildings in 2008. Management believes that 
the physical facilities are suitable and adequate and at present 
are being fully utilized. Suffolk, however, evaluates future needs 
continuously and anticipates other changes in its facilities dur-
ing the next several years. 
 
ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings 
 
There are no material legal proceedings, individually or in the 
aggregate, to which Suffolk or its subsidiaries are a party or of 
which any of the property is subject. 
  
ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security 
Holders 
  
None. 
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PART II 
 
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 
 
Pages 6 and 22 of this Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. 

At January 31, 2008, there were approximately 1,510 equity holders of record and approximately 2,613 beneficial shareholders of the 
Company’s common stock. Information concerning dividends and the price range of the common stock can be found on page 6 of this 
Annual Report to Shareholders 

 
ITEM 6. Selected Quarterly Financial Data 
 
Page 38 of this Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2007. 
 
ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fi-
nancial Condition and Results of Operations 
 
Pages 7 - 20 of this Annual Report to Shareholders for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. 
 
ITEM 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about 
Market Risk 
 
Page 15 of this Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2007. 
 
ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
 
Pages 21 - 38 of this Annual Report to Shareholders for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. 

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account-
ants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
 
None. 
 
ITEM 9a. Controls and Procedures 

 
Suffolk’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
(collectively, the “Certifying Officers”) are responsible for es-
tablishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
for Suffolk. Based upon their evaluation of these controls and 
procedures as of a date within 90 days of the filing of this re-
port, the Certifying Officers have concluded that Suffolk’s dis-
closure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed by Suffolk in this report is 
accumulated and communicated to Suffolk’s management, 
including its principal executive officers as appropriate, to al-
low timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 
 
The Certifying Officers also have indicated that there were no 
significant changes in Suffolk’s internal controls or other fac-

1/1/03 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Suffolk Bancorp 100.00 112.37 114.71 113.85 130.42 109.74
NASDAQ Banks 100.00 128.64 174.22 143.82 161.41 127.92

NASDAQ US 100.00 149.52 162.72 166.18 182.57 197.98
source: CRSP Total Return Indices - NASDAQ
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PART III 

 
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 

 
Pages 2 - 8 of Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 8, 2008 is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Name Age Position

Thomas S. Kohlmann 61     Chairman, President, Apr-05 - Present Chairman, President, CEO, and Director, Suffolk Bancorp
 and Chief Executive Officer Oct-99 - Apr-05 President, CEO, and Director, Suffolk Bancorp

Oct-99 - Present President, CEO, and Director, SCNB
Jan-98 - Oct-99 EVP, Suffolk Bancorp
Jan-96 - Oct-99 EVP and Chief Lending Officer
Feb-92 - Dec-95 SVP, SCNB
1980 - Feb-92 Marine Midland Bank
Employed by SCNB since February 1992.

J. Gordon Huszagh 54     Executive Vice President and Jan-99 - Present EVP and CFO, Suffolk Bancorp
Chief Financial Officer Jan-99 - Present EVP and CFO, SCNB

Jan-97 - Jan-99 SVP and CFO, SCNB
Dec-92 - Dec-96 SVP & Comptroller, SCNB
Dec-88 - Dec-92 VP & Comptroller, SCNB
Dec-86 - Dec-88 VP, SCNB
Jan-83 - Dec-86 Auditor, SCNB
1975 - 1982 Eastern Federal Savings and Loan
Employed by SCNB since January 1983.

Robert C. Dick 58     Executive Vice President and Apr-00 - Present EVP, Suffolk Bancorp
Chief Lending Officer Apr-00 - Present EVP and Chief Lending Officer, SCNB

Oct-99 - Apr-00 SVP and Chief Lending Officer, SCNB
Dec-88 - Oct-99 SVP, Commercial Loans, SCNB
Dec-82 - Apr-88 VP, Commercial Loans, SCNB
1965 - 1980 Security National Bank/Chemical Bank
Employed by SCNB since January 1980.

Frank D. Filipo 56     Executive Vice President, Mar-03 - Present EVP, Suffolk Bancorp
Retail Banking Mar-03 - Present EVP, Retail Banking, SCNB

Sep-01 - Mar-03 SVP, Retail Banking, SCNB
Sep-96 - Sep-01 Regional Administrator, North Fork Bank
Apr-94 - Sep-96 SVP, Commercial Loans, SCNB
Jul-84 - Apr-94 EVP, Senior Lending Officer, Bank of the Hamptons, N.A.
1982 - Jul-84 VP Commerical Loans, Continental Bank
Employed by SCNB from April 1994 to September 1996 and since September 2001.

Augustus C. Weaver 65     Executive Vice President and Jan-98 - Present EVP, Suffolk Bancorp
Chief Information Officer Jan-96 - Present EVP and Chief Information Officer, SCNB

Feb-87 - Dec-95 President, Island Computer Corporation of New York, Inc.
Feb-86 - Feb-87 Director of Data Processing and Corporate Planning,

Southland Frozen Food Corporation
Feb-62 - Feb-86 VP & Director of Operations, Long Island Savings Bank
Employed by SCNB since February 1996.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Business Experience

tors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to 
the date of their evaluation, and there were no corrective ac-
tions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weak-
nesses. Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finan-

cial Reporting is incorporated herein and can be found on page 
20. The effectiveness of Suffolk’s internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2007, has been audited by Grant 
Thornton LLP whose report can be found on page 39. 
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation 
 
Pages 8-18 of Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meet-
ing of Shareholders to be held on April 8, 2008 is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners 
and Management 
 
Pages 2, 12, 13, and 14 of Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 8, 2008 is 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
  
Page 4 of Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on April 8, 2008 is incorporated herein 
by reference. 
 
ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
 
The following table presents the fees billed for each of the last 
two fiscal years by Suffolk’s principal accountant by category: 

PART IV 
 
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and 
Reports on Form 8-K 
 
The following consolidated financial statements of the Registrant 
and Subsidiaries, and the accountant’s report thereon, are in-
cluded on pages 21 through 38 inclusive. 
  
Financial Statements (Consolidated) 
 
Statements of Condition — December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
 
Statements of Income — For the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006, and 2005. 
 
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity — For the years 
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. 
 
Statements of Cash Flows — For the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006, and 2005. 
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
EXHIBITS 
 
The following exhibits, which supplement this report, have been 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Suffolk 
Bancorp will furnish a copy of any or all of the following exhib-
its to any persons sending a request in writing to the Corporate 
Secretary, Suffolk Bancorp, 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 
9000, Riverhead, New York 11901. The Audit Committee pre-approves all auditing services and 

permitted non-audit services (including the fees and terms 
thereof) to be performed for Suffolk by its independent auditor, 
subject to the de minimus exceptions for non-audit services de-
scribed in Section 10A (i) (1) (B) of the Exchange Act which are 
approved by the Committee prior to the completion of the audit. 
The Audit Committee may form and delegate authority to sub-
committees consisting of one or more members when appropri-
ate, including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and 
permitted non-audit services, provided that decisions of such 
subcommittee to grant pre-approvals shall be presented to the 
full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. Fees for 
consultation concerning the computation and filing of income 
taxes amounting to $43,000 for 2007 were paid to the firm of 
Marcum & Kliegman, LLP. 
 

2007 2006
Audit fees 355,143$          298,806$          
Audit-related fees 25,167             23,414             
Tax fees -                  -                  
All other fees -                  -                  

380,310$          322,220$          

A. Certificate of Incorporation of Suffolk Bancorp (filed by 
incorporation by reference to Suffolk Bancorp’s Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, filed March 10, 
2000)

B. Bylaws of Suffolk Bancorp (filed by incorporation by reference 
to Suffolk Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1999, filed March 10, 2000)

C. Suffolk Bancorp 1999 Stock Option Plan (filed by 
incorporation by reference to Suffolk Bancorp’s Form 10-K 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, filed March 10, 
2000)

D. Suffolk Bancorp Form of Change-of-Control Employment 
Contract (filed by incorporation by reference to Suffolk 
Bancorp’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
1999, filed March 10, 2000)
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Reports on Form 8-K 
 
The following reports were filed on Form 8-K during the three-month period ended December 31, 2007: 
 
October 15, 2007, Item 2.02 Results of Operations and Financial Condition. Attached as an exhibit is the Company’s press release titled 
“Suffolk Bancorp Announces Earnings For The Third Quarter Of 2007” dated October 15, 2007. 
 
November 27, 2007, Item 8.01 Other Events and Required FD Disclosure. Attached as an exhibit is the Company’s press release titled 
“Suffolk Bancorp Announces Regular Quarterly Dividend” dated November 27, 2007. 
 
 
 

 
SIGNATURES 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
SUFFOLK BANCORP 
March 7, 2008 
(Registrant) 

By: /s/ THOMAS S. KOHLMANN
Thomas S. Kohlmann
Chairman of the Board,
President, Chief Executive Officer, & Director

By: /s/ J. GORDON HUSZAGH
J. Gordon Huszagh
Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ JAMES E. DANOWSKI
James E. Danowski
Director

By: /s/ JOSEPH A. DEERKOSKI
Joseph A. Deerkoski
Director

By: /s/ JOSEPH A. GAVIOLA
Joseph A. Gaviola
Director

By: /s/ EDGAR F. GOODALE
Edgar F. Goodale
Director

By: /s/ DAVID A. KANDELL
David A. Kandell
Director

By: /s/ TERENCE X. MEYER
Terence X. Meyer
Director

By: /s/ SUSAN V. B. O'SHEA
Susan V. B. O'Shea
Director

By: /s/ JOHN D. STARK, JR.
John D. Stark, Jr.
Director
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT 

 
I, Thomas S. Kohlmann, certify that: 

 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Suf-
folk Bancorp; 
 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and 
other financial information included in this report, fairly present 
in all material respects the financial condition, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 
 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are re-
sponsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as de-
fined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have: 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or 
caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relat-
ing to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, 
or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure 
controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclu-
sions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pro-
cedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based 
on such evaluation; and 
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fis-
cal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regis-
trant's internal control over financial reporting; and 
 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have dis-
closed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons per-
forming the equivalent functions):  
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's 
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial infor-
mation; and  
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves man-
agement or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 7, 2008 
/s/ THOMAS S. KOHLMANN  

Thomas S. Kohlmann 
President & Chief Executive Officer 

Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT 

 
I, J. Gordon Huszagh, certify that: 

 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Suf-
folk Bancorp; 
 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circum-
stances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and 
other financial information included in this report, fairly present 
in all material respects the financial condition, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 
 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are re-
sponsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as de-
fined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have: 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or 
caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed 
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relat-
ing to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, 
or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure 
controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclu-
sions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pro-
cedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based 
on such evaluation; and 
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fis-
cal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regis-
trant's internal control over financial reporting; and 
 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have dis-
closed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons per-
forming the equivalent functions):  
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 
design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's 
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial infor-
mation; and  
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves man-
agement or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 7, 2008 
/s/ J. GORDON HUSZAGH  

J. Gordon Huszagh 
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT 

 

I, Thomas S. Kohlmann, President & Chief Executive Officer of 
Suffolk Bancorp (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to Section 
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, 
that: (1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for 
the year ended December 31, 2007 (the “Report”) fully complies 
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); and (2) the 
information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all ma-
terial respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company. 
 
Dated: March 7, 2008 
/s/ Thomas S. Kohlmann 
Thomas S. Kohlmann 
President & Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT 

 

I, J. Gordon Huszagh, Executive Vice President & Chief Finan-
cial Officer of Suffolk Bancorp (the “Company”), certify, pursu-
ant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. 
Section 1350, that: (1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the “Report”) 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); 
and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly represents, 
in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 
 
Dated: March 7, 2008 
/s/ J. Gordon Huszagh 
J. Gordon Huszagh  
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
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Chris-Nic Properties

(retail, commercial and residential real estate)
Edgar F. Goodale

President; Riverhead Building Supply Corp.
(building supply distributor)

David A. Kandell
Managing Partner; Kandell, Farnworth, & Pubins, C.P.A.’s

(accounting firm)
Thomas S. Kohlmann

Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer
Terence X. Meyer

Managing Partner; Meyer, Meyer & Keneally, Esqs. L.L.P.
(attorneys)

Susan V. B. O’Shea
Managing Partner; O'Shea Properties

(commercial real estate)
John D. Stark, Jr.

Vice President; Foxwood Corporation
(manufactured housing)

OFFICERS

Thomas S. Kohlmann
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

J. Gordon Huszagh
Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Robert C. Dick
Executive Vice President

Frank D. Filipo
Executive Vice President

Augustus C. Weaver
Executive Vice President 

Douglas Ian Shaw
Senior Vice President & Corporate Secretary



 52 
 

DIRECTORS

Thomas S. Kohlmann
Chairman of the Board     

James E. Danowski
Joseph A. Deerkoski
Joseph A. Gaviola
Edgar F. Goodale
David A. Kandell
Terence X. Meyer
Susan V. B. O’Shea
John. D. Stark, Jr.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Thomas S. Kohlmann

Chairman, President & 
Chief Executive Officer

J. Gordon Huszagh
Executive Vice President &
Chief  Financial Officer

Robert C. Dick
Executive Vice President &
Chief Lending Officer

Frank D. Filipo
   Executive Vice President
   Retail Banking
Augustus C. Weaver
   Executive Vice President &
   Chief Information Officer

LOANS
Bruce W. Bradley

Senior Vice President
David T. DeVito

Senior Vice President
Joan Brigante

Vice President
Robert T. Ellerkamp

Vice President
Robert P. Grady

Vice President
Wendy Harris

Vice President
Paul D. Hawkins, Jr.

Vice President
Benjamin Mancuso

Vice President
Gerard H. McGuirk

Vice President
William Mitarotondo

Vice President
Deborah Simonetti

Vice President
Thomas J. Sullivan

Vice President
Frederick J. Weinfurt

Vice President

RETAIL BANKING
Stanley V. Gelish

Senior Vice President
Anita J. Nigrel

Senior Vice President

David E. Lebens
Vice President

Susan M. Martinelli
Vice President

Bohemia Office
Steve E. Horner

Vice President

Center Moriches Office
Julia Pratt

Assistant Vice President

Cutchogue Office

Kim Sweeney
Assistant Vice President

Deer Park Office

Steven DeLuca
Vice President

East Hampton Pantigo Office
Sarah M. Almeraz

Assistant Vice President

East Hampton Village Office
Jill James

Vice President

Hampton Bays Office
David C. Barczak

Vice President

Hauppauge Office

Mark Harrigan
Assistant Vice President

Manorville Office

Tara Sperduto
Assistant Vice President

Mattituck Office
Janet V. Stewart

Vice President

Middle Island Office
Geralyn Harper

Assistant Vice President

Medford Office
Paul E. Vaas

Vice President

Miller Place Office
Cynthia Berner

Assistant Vice President

Montauk Harbor Office

Montauk Village Office
John J. McDonald

Vice President

Port Jefferson Harbor Office
Port Jefferson Village Office 
Jacqueline Brown

Vice President

Port Jefferson Station Office 

Michael E. Newins
Assistant Vice President

Riverhead, Ostrander
Avenue Office
Angela R. Reese

Assistant Vice President

Riverhead, Second Street Office
Vincent Cangiano

Vice President

Sag Harbor Office

Susan Tooker
Assistant Vice President

Sayville Office
Pamela  S. Werner

Assistant Vice President

Shoreham Office
Wendy A. Stapon

Assistant Vice President

Smithtown Office
Susan L. Hughes

Assistant Vice President

Southampton Office
Patricia Bolomey

Vice President

Wading River Office

John A. Maki
Assistant Vice President

Water Mill Office
Rebecca Collins

Assistant Vice President

West Babylon Office
Joanne Goodman

Assistant Vice President

Westhampton Beach Office
Jayne D. Ebert

Vice President

TRUST & ASSET
MANAGEMENT GROUP

Dan A. Cicale
Senior Vice President
& Trust Officer

Trust & Estate Services
Linda Schwartz

Vice President & Trust Officer
Warren Palzer

Vice President
Lori E. Thompson

Vice President

SCNB Financial Services, Inc.
William C. Araneo

Vice President

AUDIT  

Maria R. Michaelson
Senior Vice President

Tricia Thomas-Hector
   Vice President

COLLECTIONS
Christopher R. Martinelli

Assistant Vice President

COMPTROLLER

Stacey L. Moran
Vice President
& Comptroller

CORPORATE SERVICES 
Douglas Ian Shaw

Senior Vice President & 
Corporate Secretary

FACILITIES 

Charles E. Anderson
Manager

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Nancy Jacob

Vice President

INFORMATION
SECURITY
Joanne Appel

Assistant Vice President
& Information Security Officer

INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY
Mark J. Drozd

Senior Vice President
Fred A. Bohonan

Vice President

MARKETING

Brenda B. Sujecki
Vice President

OPERATIONS
Dennis F. Orski

Senior Vice President
Deanna L. Miller

Vice President

RISK MANAGEMENT &

COMPLIANCE
Jeanne P. Kelley
    Senior Vice President
Linda Follett
   Vice President

SECURITY

Alexander B. Doroski
   Senior Vice President



ON THE WEB AT: WWW.SCNB.COM Telephone FAX
Executive Offices 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2400 727-2638

 Audit 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2285 727-8236
Bohemia Office 3880 Veterans Memorial Highway, Bohemia, N.Y. 11716 585-4477 585-4809

Business and Professional Banking Center 260 Middle County Road, Smithtown, N.Y. 11787 979-3400 979-3430
Center Moriches Office 502 Main Street, Center Moriches, N.Y. 11934 878-8800 878-4431

Collections 206 Griffing Avenue, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2370 727-5732
Commercial Loans 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2201 727-5798

3880 Veterans Memorial Highway, Bohemia, N.Y. 11716 580-0181 580-0183
137 West Broadway, Port Jefferson, N.Y. 11777 642-1000 642-0200
295 North Sea Road, Southampton, N.Y. 11968 287-3104 287-3296

Compliance 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2292 727-2638
Comptroller 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2270 369-2230

Consumer Loans 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2222 727-5521
Corporate Services (Investor Relations) 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 727-5667 727-3214

Cutchogue Office 31525 Main Road, P.O. Box 702, Cutchogue, N.Y. 11935 734-5050 734-7759
Deer Park Office 21 East Industry Court, Suite 4, Deer Park, N.Y. 11729 274-4888 274-4810
Data Processing 206 Griffing Avenue, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2495 369-5834

East Hampton Pantigo Office 351 Pantigo Road, East Hampton, N.Y. 11937 324-2000 324-6367
East Hampton Village Office 99 Newtown Lane, East Hampton, N.Y. 11937 324-3800 324-3863

Facilities 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2333 208-0767
Hampton Bays Office 168 West Montauk Highway, Hampton Bays, N.Y. 11946 728-2700 728-8311

Hauppauge Office 110 Marcus Boulevard, Hauppauge, N.Y. 11788 436-5400 436-4454
Human Resources 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2310 727-3170

Investments and Insurance at SCNB 6 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, NY  11901 208-2380 727-3210
Manorville Office 460 County Road 111, Suite 18, Manorville, N.Y. 11949 281-8200 281-5695

Marketing 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2323 727-9223
Mattituck Office 10900 Main Road, P.O. Box 1420, Mattituck, N.Y. 11952 298-9400 298-9188
Medford Office 2801 Route 112, Suite B, Medford, N.Y. 11763 758-1500 758-1509

Middle Island Office 900 Middle Country Road, Middle Island, N.Y. 11953 345-0010 345-5377
Miller Place Office 159-21A Route 25A, Miller Place, N.Y. 11764 474-8400 474-5357

Montauk Harbor Office 541 West Lake Drive, P.O. Box 2368, Montauk, N.Y. 11954 668-4333 668-3643
Montauk Village Office 746 Montauk Highway, P.O. Box 743, Montauk, N.Y. 11954 668-5300 668-1214

Operations 206 Griffing Avenue, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2450 369-5834
Port Jefferson Harbor Office 135 West Broadway, Port Jefferson, N.Y. 11777 474-7200 331-7806
Port Jefferson Station Office 1500-10 Route 112, Port Jefferson Station, N.Y.  11776
Port Jefferson Village Office 228 East Main Street, Port Jefferson, N.Y. 11777 473-7700 473-9406
Residential Mortgage Loans 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2244 369-2468

Retail Banking 4 West Second Street, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2300 727-3873
Riverhead, Ostrander Avenue Office 1201 Ostrander Avenue, P.O. Box 9000, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 727-6800 727-5095

Riverhead, Second Street Office 6 West Second Street, Riverhead, N.Y. 11901 208-2350 727-3210
Sag Harbor Office 17 Main Street, P.O. Box 1268, Sag Harbor, N.Y. 11963 725-3000 725-4627

Sayville Office 161 North Main Street, Sayville, N.Y. 11782 218-1600 218-9425
SCNB Financial Services, Inc. 31525 Main Road, P.O. Box 702, Cutchogue, N.Y. 11935 208-2380 727-3210

Shoreham Office 9926 Route 25A, P.O. Box 622, Shoreham, N.Y. 11786 744-4400 744-6743
Smithtown Office 260 Middle Country Road, Suite 112, Smithtown, N.Y. 11787 979-3400 979-3430

Southampton Office 295 North Sea Road, Southampton, N.Y. 11968 283-3800 287-3293
Trust and Asset Management 3880 Veterans Memorial Highway, Bohemia, N.Y. 11716 285-6600 285-6610

Wading River Office 2065 Wading River-Manor Road, Wading River, N.Y. 11792 929-6300 929-6799
Water Mill Office 828 Montauk Highway, P.O. Box 216, Water Mill, N.Y. 11976 726-4500 726-7573

West Babylon Office 955 Little East Neck Road, West Babylon, N.Y. 11704 669-7300 669-5211
Westhampton Beach Office 144 Sunset Avenue, Westhampton Beach, N.Y. 11978 288-4000 288-9252

Directory of Offices and Departments
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(available soon)




